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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying balance she@taivwhn Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the rel#gehgents of income, changes in shareholders’ yequi
cash flows for the years then ended. These fiahratatements are the responsibility of the Comisany
management. Our responsibility is to express amiapon these financial statements based on aditsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with the R@leverning the Audit of Financial Statements bytiGed
Public Accountants and auditing standards genemilepted in the Republic of China. Those ruled an
standards require that we plan and perform thet midibtain reasonable assurance about whethdindnecial
statements are free of material misstatement. Uit &ncludes examining, on a test basis, evideuggporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statesn An audit also includes assessing the adoount
principles used and significant estimates made lbyagement, as well as evaluating the overall filahnc
statement presentation. We believe that our apditdde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, financial
position of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Camp Limited as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the results of its operations and its cash flowstf® years then ended in conformity with the Glingds
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports bgusties Issuers, requirements of the Busines®uaing
Law and Guidelines Governing Business Accountinghwiespect to financial accounting standards, and
accounting principles generally accepted in theuRép of China.

We have also audited, in accordance with the R@8gerning the Audit of Financial Statements by {fied
Public Accountants and auditing standards genesatlyepted in the Republic of China, the consolilate

financial statements of Taiwan Semiconductor Mactufdg Company Limited and subsidiaries as of &md
the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 on wigdiave issued an unqualified opinion.

February 5, 2013

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are interatdy to present the financial position, resultoopgrations
and cash flows in accordance with accounting pples and practices generally accepted in the Repufl
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. eT$tandards, procedures and practices to audit such
financial statements are those generally acceptetlapplied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ ré@ord the accompanying financial statements hawen be
translated into English from the original Chinessrsion prepared and used in the Republic of Chinéthere

is any conflict between the English version and thiginal Chinese version or any difference in the
interpretation of the two versions, the Chineseglaage auditors’ report and financial statementslispeevail.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Vale)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢Notes 2, 5 and 23)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2, 6 a8yl
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2, 7 a@jl 2
Receivables from related parties (Notes 3 and 24)
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 3)
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Notes 2, 3 &)d
Allowance for sales returns and others (Notes 2&nd
Other receivables from related parties (Notes 32a)d
Other financial assets
Inventories (Notes 2 and 9)
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 17)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 2, 7, 10, 11 and 23)
Investments accounted for using equity method
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost

Total long-term investments

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 12 and 24)
Cost
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment

Accumulated depreciation
Advance payments and construction in progress

Net property, plant and equipment
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill (Note 2)
Deferred charges, net (Notes 2 and 13)
Total intangible assets
OTHER ASSETS
Refundable deposits
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 17)
Others (Notes 2 and 24)

Total other assets

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

2012 2011

Amount % Amount %
$ 109,150,810 12 $ 85,262,521 11
38,824 - 14,925 -
1,845,052 - 2,617,134 -
701,146 - 701,136 -
40,987,444 4 24,777,534 3
15,726,431 2 19,894,386 3
(474,037) - (485,120) -
(5,732,738) Q) (4,887,879) -
274,963 - 188,028 -
175,261 - 122,010 -
35,296,391 4 22,853,397 3
7,728,464 1 5,779,544 1
2,097,329 - 1,725,736 -
207,815,340 22 158,563,352 21
139,264,161 15 128,200,718 17
- - 702,291 -
483,759 - 497,835 -
139,747,920 15 129,400,844 17
173,344,932 18 149,495,478 20
1,202,761,097 127 984,978,666 129
16,683,484 2 13,824,434 2
1,392,789,513 147 1,148,298,578 151
(924,961,566) (98) (804,740,797) (106)
118,775,347 13 110,815,752 14
586,603,294 62 454,373,533 59
1,567,756 - 1,567,756 -
4,882,081 1 4,719,244 1
6,449,837 1 6,287,000 1
2,394,826 - 4,491,735 1
2,244,947 - 7,221,824 1
917,019 - 1,069,586 -
5,556,792 - 12,783,145 2
$ 946,173,183 100 $ 761,407,874 100

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans (Note 14)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss (Notes 2, 5
and 23)
Accounts payable
Payables to related parties (Note 24)
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 17)
Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonusrectbrs (Note 19)
Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers
Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiest¢N&B)
Current portion of bonds payable (Notes 15 and 23)

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds payable (Notes 15 and 23)
Other long-term payables (Note 23)

Total long-term liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension cost (Notes 2 and 16)
Guarantee deposits

Total other liabilities
Total liabilities

CAPITAL STOCK - NT$10 PAR VALUE (Note 19)
Authorized: 28,050,000 thousand shares
Issued: 25,924,435 thousand shares in 2012

25,916,222 thousand shares in 2011

CAPITAL SURPLUS (Notes 2 and 19)

RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 19)
Appropriated as legal capital reserve
Appropriated as special capital reserve
Unappropriated earnings

OTHERS
Cumulative translation adjustments (Note 2)
Net loss not recognized as pension cost
Unrealized gain/loss on financial instrumentst@d¢a? and 23)

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL

2012 2011

Amount % Amount %
34,714,929 4 25,926,528 3
6,274 - - -
13,392,221 1 9,522,688 1
3,230,342 - 2,992,582 -
15,196,399 2 10,647,797 1
11,186,591 1 9,055,704 1
44,371,108 5 33,811,970 5
16,698,014 2 13,057,161 2
- - 4,500,000 1
138,795,878 15 109,514,430 14
80,000,000 9 18,000,000 2
54,000 - - -
80,054,000 9 18,000,000 2
3,926,276 - 3,860,898 1
199,315 - 439,032 -
4,125,591 - 4,299,930 1
222,975,469 24 131,814,360 17
259,244,357 27 259,162,226 34
56,137,809 6 55,846,357 8
115,820,123 12 102,399,995 13
7,606,224 1 6,433,874 1
287,174,942 30 213,357,286 28
410,601,289 43 322,191,155 42
(10,753,763) @ (6,433,369) @)
(5,299) - - -
7,973,321 1 (1,172,855) -
(2,785,741) - (7,606,224) 1)
723,197,714 76 629,593,514 83
$ 946,173,183 100 $ 761,407,874 100



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2012

2011

GROSS SALES (Notes 2 and 24)

SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES (Notes 2
and 8)

NET SALES
COST OF SALES (Notes 9, 18 and 24)

GROSS PROFIT BEFORE AFFILIATES
ELIMINATION

REALIZED (UNREALIZED) GROSS PROFIT FROI
AFFILIATES (Note 2)

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 18 and 24)
Research and development
General and administrative
Marketing

Total operating expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS

Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net
(Notes 2 and 10)

Settlement income (Note 26)

Interest income

Technical service income (Note 24)

Valuation gain on financial instruments, net
(Notes 2, 5 and 23)

Others (Notes 2 and 24)

Total non-operating income and gains

Amount

$ 506,697,738

%

Amount

$ 421,472,087

%

6,825,851 3,226,594
499,871,887 100 418,245,493 100
265,538,540 53 233,083,068 56
234,333,347 47 185,162,425 44

(25,029) - 398,440 -
234,308,318 47 185,560,865 44
38,788,245 8 31,594,034 7
16,330,060 3 12,715,339 3
2,388,243 - 2,345,729 1
57,506,548 11 46,655,102 11
176,801,770 36 138,905,763 33
8,127,748 2 3,778,083 1
883,845 - 947,340 1
867,227 - 697,196 -
497,638 - 408,153 -
- - 801,195 -
811,619 - 655,079 -
11,188,077 2 7,287,046 2
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Impairment loss of financial assets (Notes 2, 6
and 23) $ 2,677,529 1 - -
Interest expense (Note 24) 945,114 445,887 -
Impairment loss on idle assets (Note 2) 418,330 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Notes 2 and 24) 146,647 - 202,901 -
Foreign exchange loss, net (Note 2) - - 673,085 -
Others (Note 2) 172,279 - 163,092 -
Total non-operating expenses and losses 4,359,899 1 1,484,965 -
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 183,629,948 37 144,707,844 35
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 17) 17,471,146 4 10,506,565 3
NET INCOME $ 166,158,802 3 $ 134,201,279 2
2012 2011
Before After Before After
Income Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NT$, Note 22)
Basic earnings per share $ 7.08 $ 641 $ 5.58 $ 5.8
Diluted earnings per share $ 7.08 $ 641 $ 5.58 $ 5.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

(Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Divideds Per Share)

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2011

Appropriations of prior year's earnings
Legal capital reserve
Special capital reserve
Cash dividends to shareholders - NT$3.00 per

share

Net income in 2011

Adjustment arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in equity method investees

Translation adjustments

Issuance of stock from exercising employee stock
options

Net changes of valuation gain/loss on
available-for-sale financial assets

Net change in shareholders’ equity from equity
method investees

Acquisition of treasury stock - shareholders
executed the appraisal right

Retirement of treasury stock

Effect of spin-off

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011

Appropriations of prior year's earnings
Legal capital reserve
Special capital reserve
Cash dividends to shareholders - NT$3.00 per

share

Net income in 2012

Adjustment arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in equity method investees

Translation adjustments

Issuance of stock from exercising employee stock
options

Net changes of valuation gain/loss on
available-for-sale financial assets

Net change in shareholders’ equity from equity
method investees

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2012

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

Others
Net Loss Not Unrealized
Capital Stock - Common Stock Retained Earnings Cumulative Recognized Gain/Loss Total
Shares Legal Capital Special Capital Unappropriated Translation as Pension on Financial Shareholders’
(In Thousands) Amount Capital Surplus Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Adjustments Cost Instruments Treasury Stock Equity
25,910,078 $ 259,100,787 $ 55,698,434 $ 86,239,494 $ 1,313,047 $ 178,227,030 $ 265,779,571 $ (6,543,163) $ - $ 109,289 $ - $ 574,144,918
- - - 16,160,501 - (16,160,501) - - - - - -
- - - - 5,120,827 (5,120,827) - - - - - -
- - - - - (77,730,236) (77,730,236) - - - - (77,730,236)
- - - - - 134,201,279 134,201,279 - - - - 134,201,279
- - 59,898 - - - - - - - - 59,898
- - - - - - - (112,326) - - - (112,326)
7,144 71,439 146,258 - - - - - - - - 217,697
- - - - - - - - - (1,112,995) - (1,112,995)
- - - - - - - - - (165,851) - (165,851)
- - - - - - - - - - (71,598) (71,598)
(2,000) (10,000) (2,139) - - (59,459) (59,459) - - - 71,598 -
- - (56,094) - - - - 222,120 - (3,298) - 162,728
25,916,222 259,162,226 55,846,357 102,399,995 6,433,874 213,357,286 322,191,155 (6,433,369) - (1,172,855) - 629,593,514
- - - 13,420,128 - (13,420,128) - - - - - -
- - - - 1,172,350 (1,172,350) - - - - - -
- - - - - (77,748,668) (77,748,668) - - - - (77,748,668)
- - - - - 166,158,802 166,158,802 - - - - 166,158,802
- - 131,095 - - - - - - - - 131,095
- - - - - - - (4,320,394) - - - (4,320,394)
8,213 82,131 160,357 - - - - - - - - 242,488
- - - - - - - - - 1,998,347 - 1,998,347
- - - - - - - - (5,299) 7,147,829 - 7,142,530
25,924,435 $ 259,244,357 $ 56,137,809 $ 115,820,123 $ 7,606,224 $ 287,174,942 $ 410,601,289 $ (10,753,763) $ (5,299) $ 7,973,321 $ - $ 723,197,714



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Financial assets carried at cost

(242,063,668)
(2,259,244)
(1,093)

Net income $ 166,158,802 $ 134,201,279
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 124,399,879 102,925,423
Unrealized (realized) gross profit from affiliates 25,029 (398,440)
Amortization of premium/discount of financial asset 2,281 9,860
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financiadeis (110,634) (35,151)
Loss on disposal of financial assets carried at cos 269 -
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net (8,127,748) (3,778,083)
Cash dividends received from equity method investee 1,688,878 2,941,548
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmadtaher assets,
net 125,488 99,884
Impairment loss of financial assets 2,677,529 -
Impairment loss on idle assets 418,330 -
Deferred income tax 2,618,657 (493,026)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value thglo profit or loss (17,625) (22,759)
Receivables from related parties (16,209,910) 956,440
Notes and accounts receivable 4,167,955 2,356,519
Allowance for doubtful receivables (11,083) (2,880)
Allowance for sales returns and others 844,859 (2,453,565)
Other receivables from related parties (89,347) (38,049)
Other financial assets (53,251) 138,196
Inventories (12,442,994) 2,775,646
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (371,593) (382,852)
Accounts payable 1,361,012 (1,805,422)
Payables to related parties (67,770) 418,132
Income tax payable 4,548,602 3,538,928
Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonus recttirs 2,130,887 (1,903,765)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 3,556,824 (410,047)
Accrued pension cost 65,378 96,880
Net cash provided by operating activities 277,288,704 238,734,696
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash contributed related to spin-off - (1,270,340)

(202,757,541)
(7,390,883)

(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Proceeds from return of capital by investees $
Proceeds from disposal or redemption of:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost
Property, plant and equipment and other assets
Increase in deferred charges
Decrease in refundable deposits

Decrease in other assets

2012
587,902

612,834
700,000
14,900
93,984
(1,743,043)
2,096,909
17,600

2011

$ 320,013
1,035,151
4,789,000

4,650,078
(1,658,296)
4,147,014

27,600

Net cash used in investing activities

(241,942,919)

(198,108,204)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans 8,788,401 (4,982,109)
Cash dividends (77,748,668) (77,730,236)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 62,000,000 18,000,000
Repayment of bonds (4,500,000) -
Decrease in guarantee deposits (239,717) (308,855)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 242,488 217,697
Acquisition of treasury stock - (71,598)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,457,496) (64,875,101)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 23,888,289 (24,248,609)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 85,262,521 109,511,130
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 109,150,810 $ 85,262,521
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 670,165 $ 369,085
Income tax paid $ 10,312,114 $ 7,454,386

INVESTING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTH CASH AND
NON-CASH ITEMS
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

$ 255,108,068 $ 195,932,728

Decrease (increase) in payables to contractorequigment suppliers (12,764,075) 6,827,106
Increase in payables to related parties (280,256) -
Nonmonetary exchange trade-out price (69) (2,293)
Cash paid $ 242,063,668 $ 202,757,541
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2012 2011
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and odlssets $ 91,641 $ 3,370,165
Decrease in other receivables to related parties 2,412 1,124,206
Decrease in other financial assets - 158,000
Nonmonetary exchange trade-out price (69) (2,293)
Cash received $ 93984 $ 4,650,078
Acquisition of deferred charges $ 2,184,901 $ 1,658,296
Increase in accounts payable (303,584) -
Increase in payables to related parties (25,274) -
Increase in other long-term payables (113,000) -
Cash paid $ 1,743,043 $ 1,658,296
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Idle assets reclassified from property, plant aspament $ 418,330 $ -
Current portion of other long-term payables (uretsrued expenses

and other current liabilities) $ 59,000 $ -
Current portion of bonds payable $ - $ 4,500,000

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FOR SPIN-OFF BUSINESSES

In August 2011, the Company transferred the sdhdeslighting and solar businesses into its whoilyred,
newly incorporated subsidiaries, TSMC Solid Staighting Ltd. (TSMC SSL) and TSMC Solar Ltd. (TSMC
Solar), respectively. The relevant information attepin-off was as follows:

TSMC SSL TSMC Solar Total

Acquired investments accounted for using equity

method $ 2,270,000 $ 11,180,000 $ 13,450,000
Non-cash items transferred

Current assets 36,050 18,807 54,857

Long-term investments 2,872 7,912,710 7,915,582

Property, plant and equipment 1,929,563 2,372,214 4,301,777

Other assets 234,696 201,677 436,373

Current liabilities (292,728) (337,439) (630,167)

Other liabilities (36,272) (25,218) (61,490)

Capital surplus - (56,094) (56,094)

Unrealized gain/loss on financial instruments (3,298) (3,298)

Cumulative translation adjustments 256 221,864 222,120
(1,874,437) (10,305,223) (12,179,660)

Cash contributed related to spin-off $ 395,563 $ 874,777 $ 1,270,340
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements. (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limi{gae “Company” or “TSMC”), a Republic of
China (R.O.C.) corporation, was incorporated onrraty 21, 1987. The Company is a dedicated foundry
in the semiconductor industry which engages maimlghe manufacturing, selling, packaging, testing a
computer-aided design of integrated circuits arfteiosemiconductor devices and the manufacturing of
masks. Beginning in 2010, the Company also engagethe researching, developing, designing,
manufacturing and selling of solid state lightireyites and related applications products and systend
renewable energy and efficiency related technotogiad products. In August 2011, the Company
transferred its solid state lighting and solar besses into its wholly-owned, newly incorporated
subsidiaries, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar, respectively

On September 5, 1994, its shares were listed orm#nean Stock Exchange (TWSE). On October 8,
1997, TSMC listed some of its shares of stock @aNew York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in the form of
American Depositary Shares (ADSS).

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company B&#3 and 30,113 employees, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are presented in confgrmith the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, Businessoénting Law, Guidelines Governing Business
Accounting, and accounting principles generallyepted in the R.O.C.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanyiranéial statements have been translated into Englis
from the original Chinese version prepared and usdtie R.O.C. If there is any conflict betweee th
English version and the original Chinese versioamy difference in the interpretation of the twasiens,
the Chinese-language financial statements shalbpre

Significant accounting policies are summarizedadiews:

Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions other than derivativetracts are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at th
rates of exchange in effect when the transactiocmuro Exchange gains or losses derived from
foreign-currency transactions or monetary assets l@bilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognized in earnings.

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets anlitisbdenominated in foreign currencies are reedl at
prevailing exchange rates with the resulting ganwsses recognized in earnings.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith the aforementioned guidelines, law and

principles requires management to make reasonatdengtions and estimates of matters that are
inherently uncertain. The actual results may diffem management’s estimates.



Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Current assets are assets held for trading purposgsassets expected to be converted to cashsold
consumed within one year from the balance sheet dafurrent liabilities are obligations incurred fo
trading purposes and obligations expected to biedetvithin one year from the balance sheet date.
Assets and liabilities that are not classified @sent are noncurrent assets and liabilities, retspay.

Cash Equivalents

Repurchase agreements collateralized by corporatdsh short-term commercial paper and government
bonds acquired with maturities of less than thremtims from the date of purchase are classifiedaah c
equivalents. The carrying amount approximatesvigine due to their short term nature.

Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value ThroughProfit or Loss

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedgeounting are initially recognized at fair valudth
transaction costs expensed as incurred. The dedgaare remeasured at fair value subsequently wit
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. @Qul& way purchase or sale of financial assets is
accounted for using settlement date accounting.

Fair value is estimated using valuation technigireorporating estimates and assumptions that are
consistent with prevailing market conditions. Wibe fair value is positive, the derivative is rgeized
as a financial asset; when the fair value is negathe derivative is recognized as a financidliliiy.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initiallgcognized at fair value plus transaction costs Hrat
directly attributable to the acquisition. Changefair value from subsequent remeasurement are e

as a separate component of shareholders’ equithie cbrresponding accumulated gains or losses are
recognized in earnings when the financial assefeigcognized from the balance sheet. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouoteagsing settlement date accounting.

The fair value of overseas publicly traded stocttétermined using the closing prices at the erttiefear.

If there is objective evidence which indicates thdinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recoghizd-or
equity securities, if the fair value subsequentigréases, the increase in value is recorded iresblers’
equity.

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Debt securities for which the Company has a pasifitention and ability to hold to maturity are
categorized as held-to-maturity financial asset$ @ane carried at amortized cost. Those finangakts
are initially recognized at fair value plus trartgat costs that are directly attributable to theuasition.
Gains or losses are recognized at the time of dgretion, impairment or amortization. A regularywa
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouoteagsing settlement date accounting.

If there is objective evidence which indicates thdinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recoghizdf, in

a subsequent period, the amount of the impairnusst decreases and the decrease is clearly atbiéwta

an event which occurred after the impairment loas wecognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed to the extent of the decreasee réhersal may not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds the amortized cost that would have beenmligied as if no impairment loss had been recognize

-10 -



Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments for which the Company does not exesitpaificant influence and that do not have a qdiote
market price in an active market and whose faiuealannot be reliably measured, such as non-pyblicl
traded stocks and mutual funds, are carried at tnigjinal cost. The costs of non-publicly tradsdcks
and mutual funds are determined using the weigatedage method. If there is objective evidenceckvhi
indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a iIsgecognized. A subsequent reversal of suclhimment
loss is not allowed.

Cash dividends are recognized as investment incopm resolution of shareholders of an investee.
Stock dividends are recorded as an increase imuingber of shares held and do not affect investment
income. The cost per share is recalculated basdigeonew total number of shares.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is provideaséd on a review of the collectability of receiahl
The Company assesses the collectability of rectgaby performing the account aging analysis and
examining current trends in the credit qualitytsfaustomers.

The Company’s provision was originally set at 1%haf amount of outstanding receivables. On January
1, 2011, the Company adopted the third revisioStatement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 34, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and dglerement (SFAS No. 34).” One of the main
revisions is that the impairment of receivablegiodated by the Company is subject to the provisioins
SFAS No. 34. Accordingly, the Company evaluatesiridication of impairment of accounts receivable
based on an individual and collective basis atette of each reporting period. When objective awee
indicates that the estimated future cash flow aaats receivable decreases as a result of oneog m
events that occurred after the initial recognitanthe accounts receivable, such accounts receivata
deemed to be impaired.

Because of the Company’s short average collectiviog, the amount of the impairment loss recogniged
the difference between the carrying amount of aotoreceivable and estimated future cash flowsowith
considering the discounting effect. Changes in ¢herying amount of the allowance account are
recognized as bad debt expense which is recorddtkinperating expenses - general and administrativ
When accounts receivable are considered uncollectédie amount is written off against the allowance
account.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at standard cost andtedjts approximate weighted-average cost on trembal
sheet date.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orrealizable value. Inventory write-downs are madean
item-by-item basis, except where it may be appaterto group similar or related items. Net redliga
value is the estimated selling price of inventoriess all estimated costs of completion and necgssa
selling costs.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies wherein the Company esescsignificant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for usihg equity method. The Company’s share of the net
income or net loss of an investee is recognizaderiequity in earnings/losses of equity methodestees,
net” account. The cost of an investment shallrmdyaed and the cost of investment in excess ofdine
value of identifiable net assets acquired, repitasgigoodwill, shall not be amortized. If the fasalue of
identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the ¢asvestment, the excess shall be proportionatibbeated

as reductions to fair values of non-current asg¢exsept for financial assets other than investments
accounted for using the equity method and deféneaime tax assets). When an indication of impaitme
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is identified, the carrying amount of the investiisireduced, with the related impairment loss gaczed
in earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional invéstelgares at a percentage different from its exgsti
ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amadirthe investment in the investee differs from the
amount of the Company’s share of the investee'styequThe Company records such a difference as an
adjustment to long-term investments with the cqoesling amount charged or credited to capital sistpl
Cash dividends received from an investee shallaedbe carrying amount of the investment. Stock
dividends are recorded as an increase in the nuailstares held and do not affect investment income

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to equéthod investees are deferred in proportion to the
Company’s ownership percentages in the investedd such gains or losses are realized through
transactions with third parties. The entire amaafrthe gains or losses on sales to investeeswhigh

the Company has a controlling interest is defear®d such gains or losses are realized througlseent
sales of the related products to third parties. in§&ar losses on sales from equity method investeése
Company are deferred in proportion to the Compaawsership percentages in the investees until siney
realized through transactions with third partie&ains or losses on sales between equity methodtee®
over each of which the Company has control arerdsden proportion to the Company’s weighted-averag
ownership percentage in the investee which recgailas or losses. In transactions between equity
method investees over either or both of which tlen@any has no control, gains or losses on sales are
deferred in proportion to the multiplication of tR@mpany’s weighted-average ownership percentages i
the investees. Such gains or losses are defemtiidthey are realized through transactions withidth
parties.

If an investee’s functional currency is a foreignrency, differences will result from the transbatiof the
investee’s financial statements into the reportngency of the Company. Such differences areggtar
or credited to cumulative translation adjustmeatseparate component of shareholders’ equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Assets Leased to O#rs and Idle Assets

Property, plant and equipment and assets leasethéos are stated at cost less accumulated defecia
When an indication of impairment is identified, aaycess of the carrying amount of an asset over its
recoverable amount is recognized as a loss. Ifdheverable amount increases in a subsequentdperio
the amount previously recognized as impairment dida reversed and recognized as a gain. However,
the adjusted amount may not exceed the carryinguatnthat would have been determined, net of
depreciation, as if no impairment loss had beerogeized. Significant additions, renewals and
betterments incurred during the construction pesiadcapitalized. Maintenance and repairs areresque

as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linethod over the following estimated service lives:
buildings - 10 to 20 years; machinery and equipmé&nyears; and office equipment - 3 to 5 years.

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and egeipnand assets leased to others, the related wdst a
accumulated depreciation are deducted from theegponding accounts, with any gain or loss recoeded
non-operating gains or losses in the year of satksposal.

When property, plant and equipment are determiodaktidle or useless, they are transferred toddets

at the lower of the net realizable value or cagyamount. Depreciation on the idle assets is deali
continuously, and the idle assets are tested fpaiment on a periodical basis.
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Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the considerat#d for acquisition over the fair value of iddiatble

net assets acquired. Goodwill is no longer amedtiand instead is tested for impairment annually, o
more frequently if events or changes in circumstansuggest that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If an event occurs or circumstanbasige which indicate that the fair value of gootisil
more likely than not below its carrying amount,iaipairment loss is recognized. A subsequent ravers
of such impairment loss is not allowed.

Deferred charges consist of technology license, feeffware and system design costs and patent and
others. The amounts are amortized over the foligvgeriods: Technology license fees - the estithate
life of the technology or the term of the technglaansfer contract; software and system desigisco3
years; patent and others - the economic life ottraoh period. When an indication of impairment is
identified, any excess of the carrying amount ofaset over its recoverable amount is recognized@ss.

If the recoverable amount increases in a subsequend, the previously recognized impairment loss
would be reversed and recognized as a gain. Hawthes adjusted amount may not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of @xation, as if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Expenditures related to research activities andehelated to development activities that do nagtntiee
criteria for capitalization are charged to expenbken incurred.

Pension Costs

For employees who participate in defined contriiugpension plans, pension costs are recorded lmased
the actual contributions made to employees’ indigldpension accounts during their service periodor
employees who participate in defined benefit pengilans, pension costs are recorded based on iattuar
calculations.

Income Tax

The Company applies an inter-period allocationieincome tax whereby deferred income tax assels a
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects efmporary differences and unused tax credits. \alua
allowances are provided to the extent, if any, thst more likely than not that deferred income éssets
will not be realized. A deferred tax asset oriligbis classified as current or noncurrent in actance
with the classification of its related asset obility. However, if a deferred tax asset or litidoes not
relate to an asset or liability in the financiatsiments, then it is classified as either curremomcurrent
based on the expected length of time before g&atized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machinenyd equipment, research and development
expenditures and personnel training expendituresemmognized using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are &didto or deducted from the current year’s tax [@iowi.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings at a ratB086 is expensed in the year of shareholder approval
which is the year subsequent to the year the eggrare generated.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options that were granted or matlifiethe period from January 1, 2004 to December 31
2007 are accounted for by the interpretations thsie the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. The Companlppéed the intrinsic value method and any
compensation cost determined using this methoddésgnized in earnings over the employee vesting
period. Employee stock option plans that were tghror modified after December 31, 2007 are
accounted for using fair value method in accordanth SFAS No. 39, “Accounting for Share-based
Payment.” The Company did not grant or modify amployee stock options since January 1, 2008.
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Treasury Stock

Treasury stock represents the outstanding shaaéshin Company buys back from market, which isestat
at cost and shown as a deduction in shareholdgustye When the Company retires treasury stock, th
treasury stock account is reduced and the comnuak sts well as the capital surplus - additionatipai
capital are reversed on a pro rata basis. Whehdbk value of the treasury stock exceeds the duimeo
par value and additional paid-in capital, the ddéfece is charged to capital surplus - treasurykstoc
transactions and to retained earnings for any m@nmiamount. While disposing of the treasury stalok
treasury stock shall be reversed, and if the dapeslue is greater than the book value, the amaunt
excess of the book value shall be credited to mafdit paid-in capital - treasury stock.

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Returrad Others

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence afrangement exists, the rewards of ownership and
significant risk of the goods has been transfet@®dhe buyer, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured. Provisions éstimated sales returns and other allowances are
recorded in the year the related revenue is rezednibased on historical experience, management’s
judgment, and any known factors that would sigaifiity affect the allowance.

Sales prices are determined using fair value takitg account related sales discounts agreed tthéy
Company and its customers. Sales agreements ltypicavide that payment is due 30 days from ineoic
date for a majority of the customers and 30 to d¥sdhfter the end of the month in which sales otmur
some customers. Since the receivables from sedasollectible within one year and such transactiare
frequent, fair value of the receivables is equintite the nominal amount of the cash to be received

Spin-off

For the Company’s organization realignment, whenGompany contributes net assets, including cash, t
the newly formed subsidiaries in exchange for dllttee shares of those subsidiaries, the net assets
transferred are reflected at their net book valitbomt recognizing any gain or loss.

. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

On January 1, 2011, the Company prospectively adioglie newly revised SFAS No. 34, “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.” Th@émevisions include (1) finance lease receivables
are now covered by SFAS No. 34; (2) the scope @fftplicability of SFAS No. 34 to insurance consac
is amended; (3) loans and receivables originatethbyCompany are now covered by SFAS No. 34; (4)
additional guidelines on impairment testing of fiogl assets carried at amortized cost when theodbhs
financial difficulties and the terms of obligatiohave been modified; and (5) accounting treatmgna b
debtor for modifications in the terms of obligaton This accounting change did not have a sigmfica
effect on the Company’s financial statements aandffor the year ended December 31, 2011.

On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the nestied SFAS No. 41, “Operating Segments.” The
statement requires identification and disclosurepdrating segments on the basis of how the Con'gpany
chief operating decision maker regularly reviewkimation in order to allocate resources and assess
performance. This statement supersedes SFAS No'S2Zgment Reporting” and it only changes the
disclosure of segment reporting due to the adoptidrhe Company has conformed to the disclosure
requirement and provided the operating segmentfodigre in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2012 2011
Cash and deposits in banks $ 105,873,048 $ 81,467,607
Repurchase agreements collateralized by corpocaigsh 2,660,042 -
Repurchase agreements collateralized by short¢éemmercial paper 349,341 -
Repurchase agreements collateralized by governoemts 268,379 3,794914

$ 109,150,810 $ 85,262,521

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2012 2011
Trading financial assets
Forward exchange contracts $ 37,877 $ 14,925
Cross currency swap contracts 947 -

$ 38,824 $ 14,925

Trading financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts $ 3,572 $ -
Cross currency swap contracts 2,702 -
$ 6,274 $ -

The Company entered into derivative contracts dutire years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 to
manage exposures due to fluctuations of foreigiaxge rates. The derivative contracts enteredoyto
the Company did not meet the criteria for hedg®asting. Therefore, the Company did not apply leedg
accounting treatment for its derivative contracts.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts consistedeofollowing:

Contract Amount

Maturity Date (In Thousands)
December 31, 2012
Sell NT$/Buy EUR January 2013 NT$9,417,062/EUR246,000
December 31, 2011
Sell EUR/Buy NT$ January 2012 EUR38,600/NT$1,528,206
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Outstanding cross currency swap contracts considtéte following:

Range of Range of
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (In Thousands) Paid Received
December 31, 2012
January 2013 US$275,000/NT$7,986,190 0.14%-0.17% -

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201&f $$s on derivative financial instruments was
NT$152,814 thousand and a net gain on derivatigantiial instruments was NT$801,195 thousand,
respectively.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets held by the @any are overseas publicly traded stock. For #ay
ended December 31, 2012, the Company recognizeidhpairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets of NT$2,677,529 thousand due to the signifidecline in fair value.

. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2012 2011
Corporate bonds $ 701,146 $ 1,403,427
Current portion (701,146) (701,136)

$ 0 - $ 702,291

. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, SALES RETU RNS AND OTHERS
Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivaliese as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 485,120 $ 488,000
Write-off (11,083) (2.880)
Balance, end of year $ 474,037 $ 485,120

Movements of the allowance for sales returns ahdretwere as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,887,879 $ 7,341,444
Provision 6,825,851 3,226,594
Write-off (5,980,992) (5,680,159)
Balance, end of year $ 5,732,738 $ 4,887,879
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9. INVENTORIES

December 31

2012 2011
Finished goods $ 5,936,018 $ 3,250,637
Work in process 24,442,123 16,971,209
Raw materials 3,666,048 1,593,393
Supplies and spare parts 1,252,202 1,038,158
$ 35,296,391 $ 22,853,397

Write-down of inventories to net realizable valnghe amount of NT$1,341,041 thousand was incluiled
the cost of sales for the year ended December Bl2.2 The reserve for inventory write-downs in the
amount of NT$74,861 thousand was reversed in tsé afosales for the year ended December 31, 2011
when the related inventory items were scrappealor s

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

December 31

2012 2011
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
TSMC Global Ltd. (TSMC Global) $ 49,954,386 100 $ 44,071,845 100
TSMC Partners, Ltd. (TSMC Partners) 38,635,129 100 34,986,964 100
TSMC China Company Limited (TSMC
China) 17,828,683 100 13,542,181 100

Vanguard International Semiconductor
Corporation (VIS)
Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Company

9,462,038 40 8,988,007 39

Pte Ltd. (SSMC) 6,710,956 39 6,289,429 39
TSMC Solar 6,031,369 99 10,153,244 100
TSMC North America 3,209,288 100 2,981,639 100
TSMC SSL 2,411,212 95 1,746,893 100
Xintec Inc. (Xintec) 1,550,313 40 1,606,694 40
Global UniChip Corporation (GUC) 1,222,972 35 1,157,188 35
VentureTech Alliance Fund I, L.P.

(VTAF 111) 1,047,285 50 1,311,044 53
VentureTech Alliance Fund I, L.P. (VTAF II) 563,056 98 762,135 98
TSMC Europe B.V. (TSMC Europe) 235,761 100 205,171 100
Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P. (Emerging

Alliance) 167,359 99 213,235 99
TSMC Japan Limited (TSMC Japan) 142,412 100 161,601 100
TSMC Guang Neng Investment, Ltd.

(TSMC GN) 65,007 100 - -
TSMC Korea Limited (TSMC Korea) 26,935 100 23,448 100

$ 139,264,161 $ 128,200,718

In the second half year of 2011, the Company caatip increased its investment in TSMC China far th
amount of NT$6,759,300 thousand, and the Compasyréeeived the approval from the Investment
Commission of Ministry of Economic Affairs.
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11.

To foster a stronger sense of corporate entreprsimiguand facilitate business specializations iteoito
strengthen overall profitability and operationdiaéncy, the Company transferred its solid staghting
and solar businesses into its wholly-owned, newbpiporated subsidiaries, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar,
in August 2011. Furthermore, the Company adjustednvestment structure by transferring TSMC
Lighting North America, Inc(TSMC Lighting NA) to TSMC SSL and transferrifgotech Industries Inc.
(Motech) TSMC Solar Europe B.V. (TSMC Solar Europ€sMC Solar North America, Inc. (TSMC Solar NA)
and part oVTAF Il to TSMC Solar. As of August 1, 2011, the net bealues of the Company’s certain
assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity, idiclg cash, contributed to TSMC SSL and TSMC Satar i
exchange for all the shares of TSMC SSL and TSM@rSamounted to NT$2,270,000 thousand and
NT$11,180,000 thousand, respectively.

In January 2012, the Company invested NT$100,000sténd and established a wholly-owned subsidiary,
TSMC GN, which engages mainly in investment adéigit In February 2012, the Company patrticipated
directly or through TSMC GN in the issuance of r&hares by TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar for cash. As
of December 31, 2012, the Company’s percentagewoérship in TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar were 95%
and 99%, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201ity @gearnings of equity method investees wasta ne
gain of NT$8,127,748 thousand and NT$3,778,083ghod, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the quoted markeé of publicly traded stocks in unrestricted
investments accounted for using the equity methd& @nd GUC) were NT$17,350,833 thousand and
NT$11,273,200 thousand, respectively.

Movements of the difference between the cost oéstments and the Company’s share in investees’ net
assets allocated to depreciable assets were aw$oll

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 275,584 $ 2,504,496
Amortizations (172,492) (721,482)
Effect of spin-off - (1,507,430)
Balance, end of year $ 103,092 $ 275,584

Movements of the difference allocated to goodwirevas follows:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,061,885 $ 1,415,565
Effect of spin-off - (353,680)
Balance, end of year $ 1,061,885 $ 1,061,885
FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

December 31

2012 2011
Non-publicly traded stocks $ 338,584 $ 338,584
Mutual funds 145,175 159,251

$ 483,759 $ 497,835
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Balance,
Beginning of Balance,
Year Additions Disposals Reclassification End of Year
Cost
Buildings $ 149,495478 $ 23,886,199 $ (25,671) $ (11,074) $ 173,344,932
Machinery and equipment 984,978,666 219,868,105 (1,649,440) (436,234) 1,202,761,097
Office equipment 13,824,434 3,348,864 (489,814) - 16,683,484
1,148,298,578 $ 247,103,168 $ (2,164,925) $ (447,308) 1,392,789,513
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings 90,274,267 $ 9428212 $ (24,403) $ (164) 99,677,912
Machinery and equipment 704,885,017 111,325,894 (1,607,195) (28,814) 814,574,902
Office equipment 9,681,513 1,617,053 (489,814) - 10,708,752
804,740,797 $ 122,371,159 $ (2,121,412) $ (28,978) 924,961,566
Advance payments and construction in
progress 110,815,752 $ 8,004,900 $ (45,305) $ - 118,775,347
$ 454,373,533 $ 586,603,294
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Balance,
Beginning of Effect of Balance,
Year Additions Disposals Reclassification Spin-off End of Year
Cost
Buildings $ 128,646,942 $ 22,343,302 $ (36,929)  $ (388)  $ (1,457,449) $ 149,495478
Machinery and equipment 852,733,592 135,641,295 (2,079,115) (17,225) (1,299,881) 984,978,666
Office equipment 11,730,537 2,495,001 (362,032) - (39,072) 13,824,434
993,111,071 $ 160,479,598 $  (2478076) $ (17,613)  $  (2,796,402) 1,148,298,578
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings 81,347,877 $ 8,966,377 $ (14,293) $ (55) $ (25,639) 90,274,267
Machinery and equipment 616,495,207 90,613,430 (2,025,728) (5,569) (192,323) 704,885,017
Office equipment 8,762,361 1,184,310 (362,031) - (3.127) 9,581,513
706,605,445 $ 100,764,117 $  (2402,052) $ (5.624) 9) 804,740,797
Advance payments and construction in progress 80,348,673 $ 35,453,130 $ (3,259,587) $ - $ (1,726,464) 110,815,752
$ 366,854,299 $ 454,373,533
No interest was capitalized during the years emsrember 31, 2012 and 2011.
13. DEFERRED CHARGES, NET
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Balance,
Beginning of Balance,
Year Additions Amortization Reclassification  End of Year
Technology license fees $ 1,617,310 $ - $ (390,723) $ - $ 1,226,587
Software and system design costs 2,316,571 1,772,958 (1,117,478) (57,438) 2,914,613
Patent and others 785,363 411,943 (513,863) 57,438 740,881
$ 4,719,244 $ 2,184,901 $(2,022,064) $ - $ 4,882,081
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Balance,
Beginning of Effect of Balance,
Year Additions Amortization Disposals Spin-off End of Year
Technology license fees $2277832 $ 10,308 $ (670,830) $ - $ - $ 1,617,310
Software and system design costs 2,075,935 1,324,958 (1,064,884) (46) (19,392) 2,316,571
Patent and others 1,102,660 323,030 (416,630) - (223,697) 785,363
$ 5,456,427 $ 1,658,296 $(2,152,344) $ (46) $ (243,089) $ 4,719,244
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14. SHORT-TERM LOANS

December 31

2012 2011
Unsecured loans:
US$1,195,500 thousand, due in January 2013, andchhimterest
at 0.39%-0.58% in 2012; US$856,000 thousand, due by
February 2012, and annual interest at 0.45%-1.002011 $ 34,714,929 $ 25,926,528

15. BONDS PAYABLE

December 31

2012 2011
Domestic unsecured bonds:
Issued in September 2011 and repayable in Septe2ftiér
1.40% interest payable annually $ 10,500,000 $ 10,500,000
Issued in September 2011 and repayable in Septe2dt8r
1.63% interest payable annually 7,500,000 7,500,000
Issued in January 2012 and repayable in Januarg, 2029%
interest payable annually 10,000,000 -
Issued in January 2012 and repayable in Januar§, 2046%
interest payable annually 7,000,000 -
Issued in August 2012 and repayable in August 207B%
interest payable annually 9,900,000 -
Issued in August 2012 and repayable in August 2040%
interest payable annually 9,000,000 -
Issued in September 2012 and repayable in Septe2ohet
1.28% interest payable annually 12,700,000 -
Issued in September 2012 and repayable in Septe2iti;
1.39% interest payable annually 9,000,000 -
Issued in October 2012 and repayable in Octobe2,20533%
interest payable annually 4,400,000 -
Issued in January 2002 and repayable in Januair¥, 3000%
interest payable annually - 4,500,000
80,000,000 22,500,000
Current portion - (4,500,000)

$ 80,000,000 $ 18,000,000

With the approval from the Financial Supervisoryn@oission, the Company issued domestic unsecured
bonds in the amount of NT$23,600,000 thousand muay 2013 and is expected to issue domestic
unsecured bonds in the amount of NT$21,400,000sthualiin February 2013.

The provision of a loan guarantee to TSMC Globadubsidiary of TSMC, for its issuance of unsecured

corporate bonds for an amount not to exceed US8XB0 thousand had been approved in the meeting of
the Board of Directors of TSMC held on Februarg®]3.
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16. PENSION PLANS

The pension mechanism under the Labor PensionthAet“@Act”) is deemed a defined contribution plan.
Pursuant to the Act, the Company has made monthhgributions equal to 6% of each employee’s
monthly salary to employees’ pension accounts a&sdgnized pension costs of NT$1,205,642 thousand
and NT$1,119,717 thousand for the years ended Dmredi, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company has a defined benefit plan under therl dtandards Law that provides benefits basedon a
employee’s length of service and average monthgrgéor the six-month period prior to retirementThe
Company contributes an amount equal to 2% of ssgsaid each month to a pension fund (the Fund),
which is administered by the Labor Pension FundeBuagory Committee (the Committee) and deposited in
the Committee’s name in the Bank of Taiwan.

Due to the spin-off (Note 27), the Company trarsiéthe pension fund and the accrued pension cosei
amount of NT$46,884 thousand and NT$60,583 thoysasgectively, to TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar in
August 2011.

Pension information on the defined benefit plasusmarized as follows:

a. Components of net periodic pension cost foyta

2012 2011
Service cost $ 125,895 $ 131,975
Interest cost 156,773 164,372
Projected return on plan assets (61,664) (67,051)
Amortization 62,694 73,306
Net periodic pension cost $ 283,698 $ 302,602

b. Reconciliation of funded status of the plans aoctued pension cost at December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Benefit obligation

Vested benefit obligation $ 375,523 $ 280,629

Nonvested benefit obligation 5,971,564 5,356,405

Accumulated benefit obligation 6,347,087 5,637,034

Additional benefits based on future salaries 3,584,608 3,389,649

Projected benefit obligation 9,931,695 9,026,683
Fair value of plan assets (3,264,786) (3,039,871)
Funded status 6,666,909 5,986,812
Unrecognized net transition obligation (65,429) (73,599)
Prior service cost 138,133 145,259
Unrecognized net loss (2,813,337) (2,197,574)
Accrued pension cost $ 3,926,276 $ 3,860,898
Vested benefit $ 420,158 $ 312,213
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2012 2011

c. Actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012 aid 2

Discount rate used in determining present values 1.75% 1.75%
Future salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.00% 2.00%
d. Contributions to the Fund for the year $ 214,782 $ 209,260
e. Payments from the Fund for the year $ 26,119 $ 7,339

17. INCOME TAX

a. A reconciliation of income tax expense basetirmmome before income tax” at the statutory rated a
income tax currently payable was as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Income tax expense based on “income before incariet

statutory rate (17%) $ 31,217,091 $ 24,600,334
Tax effect of the following:

Tax-exempt income (8,360,834) (13,231,821)

Temporary and permanent differences (2,852,308) (1,429,188)
Additional income tax under the Alternative Minimurax Act - 286,827
Additional tax at 10% on unappropriated earnings 4,186,013 6,259,344
Income tax credits used (9,580,742) (6,259,344)
Income tax currently payable $ 14,609,220 $ 10,226,152

b. Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Income tax currently payable $ 14,609,220 $ 10,226,152
Income tax adjustments on prior years 48,609 464,078
Other income tax adjustments 194,660 309,361
Net change in deferred income tax assets

Investment tax credits 7,067,886 1,795,254

Temporary differences 81,752 27,284

Valuation allowance (4,530,981) (2,314,671)

Effect of spin-off - (893)
Income tax expense $ 17,471,146 $ 10,506,565
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c. Deferred income tax assets consisted of theviatig:

December 31

2012 2011
Current deferred income tax assets
Investment tax credits $ 6,179,000 $ 4,892,158
Temporary differences
Allowance for sales returns and others 687,929 488,788
Unrealized loss on inventories 359,823 -
Unrealized loss on financial instruments, net 224,694 308,929
Others 277,018 89,669

$ 7,728,464 $ 5,779,544

Noncurrent deferred income tax assets

Investment tax credits $ 6,933,074 $ 15,287,802
Temporary differences
Depreciation 819,231 2,044,680
Others 299,752 227,433
Valuation allowance (5,807,110) (10,338,091)

$ 2244947 $ 7,221,824

Effective in May 2010, the Article 5 of the Incomiax Law of the Republic of China was amended, in
which the income tax rate of profit-seeking entisgs would be reduced from 20% to 17%. The last
amended income tax rate of 17% is retroactiveiagpn January 1, 2010.

Under the Article 10 of the Statute for Industrignovation (Sll), effective in May 2010, a
profit-seeking enterprise may deduct up to 15%ofésearch and development expenditures from its
income tax payable for the year in which these edjteres are incurred, but this deduction should no
exceed 30% of the income tax payable for that yed@his incentive is retroactive to January 1, 2010
and effective until December 31, 2019.

Under the Income Basic Tax Act amended in Augud?22@he standard deduction and the tax rate of
Alternative Minimum Tax were amended from NT$1,d80usand to be NT$500 thousand and from
10% to 12%, respectively. The amended Income BleesxcAct is effective on January 1, 2013.

The Company has evaluated the impact from abovenédments and adjusted the deferred tax assets
with the resulting differences recorded as incomeeaxpense for the year ended December 31, 2012.
In addition, the Company evaluated the effect demlative Minimum Tax and the applicable year of
the profits generated from projects exempt fronoime tax for a five-year period. As the Company
plans to apply the tax-exempt income in later yeimme tax payable is anticipated to increase and
the Company will utilize available investment tevedits as an offset against income taxes. Since
more investment tax credits can be utilized, vahmaallowance has been adjusted down accordingly.

d. Integrated income tax information:

The balance of the imputation credit account aBedember 31, 2012 and 2011 was NT$8,130,060
thousand and NT$4,003,228 thousand, respectively.

The estimated and actual creditable ratios foritidion of earnings of 2012 and 2011 were 7.92% an
6.69%, respectively.

The imputation credit allocated to shareholderbased on its balance as of the date of the dividend

distribution. The estimated creditable ratio magrmge when the actual distribution of the imputatio
credit is made.
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e. All earnings generated prior to December 3171%8/e been appropriated.

f. As of December 31, 2012, investment tax crezhissisted of the following:

Total Remaining
Creditable Creditable Expiry
Law/Statute Item Amount Amount Year

Statute for Upgrading Purchase of machineryand $ 6,503,176 $ 916,499 2013
Industries equipment 7,006,655 7,006,655 2014
482,351 482,351 2015

$ 13,992,182 $ 8,405,505

Statute for Upgrading Research and development $ 1,148,374 $ - 2012
Industries expenditures 4,706,569 4,706,569 2013

$ 5854943 $ 4,706,569
Statute for Upgrading Personnel training expenditures$ 17,391 $ - 2012

Industries

Statute for Industrial Research and development $ 2,828,300 $ - 2012
Innovation expenditures

g. The profits generated from the following progeate exempt from income tax for a five-year period

Tax-exemption Period

Construction and expansion of 2004 2008 to 2012
Construction and expansion of 2005 2010 to 2014
Construction and expansion of 2006 2011 to 2015

h. The tax authorities have examined income taxmstof the Company through 2009. All investment
tax credit adjustments assessed by the tax audsohiave been recognized accordingly.

18. LABOR COST, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Classified as
Classified as Operating
Cost of Sales Expenses Total
Labor cost
Salary and bonus $ 27,681,298 $ 19,198,385 $ 46,879,683
Labor and health insurance 1,509,487 920,024 2,429,511
Pension 946,117 543,174 1,489,291
Meal 678,279 293,917 972,196
Welfare 259,656 153,907 413,563
Others 36,051 57,676 93,727
$ 31,110,888 $ 21,167,083 $ 52,277,971
Depreciation $ 111,929,312 $ 10,441,847 $ 122,371,159
Amortization $ 1273689 $ 748,375 $ 2,022,064
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19.

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Classified as
Classified as Operating
Cost of Sales Expenses Total
Labor cost
Salary and bonus $ 23,511,116 $ 16,780,285 $ 40,291,401
Labor and health insurance 1,225,757 713,298 1,939,055
Pension 899,039 523,178 1,422,217
Meal 640,257 273,002 913,259
Welfare 230,762 137,019 367,781
Others 294,010 143,151 437,161
$ 26,800,941 $ 18,569,933 $ 45,370,874
Depreciation $ 93,898,048 $ 6,858,236 $ 100,756,284
Amortization $ 1,407,787 % 744557 $ 2,152,344
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

As of December 31, 2012, 1,091,468 thousand ADShefCompany were traded on the NYSE. The
number of common shares represented by the ADSsbw&s,339 thousand (one ADS represents five
common shares).

Capital surplus can be used to offset a deficitearttie Company Law. However, the capital surplus
generated from donations and the excess of tharissyprice over the par value of capital stockligiag

the stock issued for new capital, mergers, cortlerbonds and the surplus from treasury stock aetens)
may be appropriated as stock dividends, whichiariéeld to a certain percentage of the Company’d-pai
capital. In addition, the capital surplus from determ investments may not be used for any purpose.
However, according to the revised Company Law,ofiffe January 2012, the aforementioned capital
surplus generated from donations and the exceb® asuance price over the par value of capitakstan
also be used to distribute cash in proportion igimal shareholders’ holding.

Capital surplus consisted of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
Additional paid-in capital $ 23,934,607 $ 23,774,250
From merger 22,804,510 22,804,510
From convertible bonds 8,892,847 8,892,847
From long-term investments 505,790 374,695
Donations 55 55

$ 56,137,809 $ 55,846,357
The Company’s Articles of Incorporation providetthahen allocating the net profits for each fisgadr,
the Company shall first offset its losses in presioyears and then set aside the following items
accordingly:

a. Legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits ¢efér, until the accumulated legal capital resergaals
the Company’s paid-in capital,

b. Special capital reserve in accordance with selelaws or regulations or as requested by theoatits
in charge;
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c. Bonus to directors and profit sharing to empésyef the Company of not more than 0.3% and net les
than 1% of the remainder, respectively. Directoiso also serve as executive officers of the
Company are not entitled to receive the bonusrectbrs. The Company may issue profit sharing to
employees in stock of an affiliated company meetirggconditions set by the Board of Directors gr, b
the person duly authorized by the Board of Dires;tor

d. Any balance left over shall be allocated acaaydo the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation also pravithat profits of the Company may be distributed by
way of cash dividend and/or stock dividend. Howewdéstribution of profits shall be made preferably
way of cash dividend. Distribution of profits malso be made by way of stock dividend; provided tha
the ratio for stock dividend shall not exceed 5(he total distribution.

Any appropriations of the profits are subject targimolders’ approval in the following year.

The Company accrued profit sharing to employeesdas certain percentage of net income during the
year, which amounted to NT$11,115,240 thousand Hm88,990,026 thousand for the years ended
December 31 2012 and 2011, respectively. Bonusedirectors were expensed based on estimated
amount of payment. If the actual amounts subsdalyjuessolved by the shareholders differ from the
estimated amounts, the differences are recorddtienyear of shareholders’ resolution as a change in
accounting estimate. If profit sharing is resoltede distributed to employees in stock, the nunafe
shares is determined by dividing the amount of ipsifaring by the closing price (after considerthg
effect of dividends) of the shares on the day picethe shareholders’ meeting.

The Company no longer has supervisors since Jariya2907. The required duties of supervisors are
being fulfilled by the Audit Committee.

According to the revised Company Law, effectiveutay 2012, the appropriation for legal capital rese
shall be made until the reserve equals the Comparaid-in capital. The reserve may be used tebés
deficit, or be distributed as dividends in cashstwcks for the portion in excess of 25% of the paid
capital if the Company incurs no loss.

A special capital reserve equivalent to the nettdelance of the other components of shareholasrsity

(for example, cumulative translation adjustmentsealized loss on financial instruments and net fost
recognized as pension cost, but excluding treastogk) shall be made from unappropriated earnings
pursuant to existing regulations promulgated by Sleeurities and Futures Bureau (SFB). Any special
reserve appropriated may be reversed to the etktanithe net debit balance reverses.

The appropriations of earnings for 2011 and 20X0b&en approved in the shareholders’ meetingsdreld
June 12, 2012 and June 9, 2011, respectively. appsopriations and dividends per share were aswsl|

Dividends Per Share

Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)
For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2011 Year 2010 Year 2011 Year 2010
Legal capital reserve $ 13,420,128 $ 16,160,501
Special capital reserve 1,172,350 5,120,827
Cash dividends to shareholders 77,748,668 77,730,236 $3.00 $3.00

$ 92,341,146 $ 99,011,564
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20.

The Company’s profit sharing to employees and bauslirectors in the amounts of NT$8,990,026

thousand and NT$62,324 thousand in cash for 20dgpectively, and profit sharing to employees and
bonus to directors in the amounts of NT$10,908B@8isand and NT$51,131 thousand in cash for 2010,
respectively, had been approved in the shareholdersting held on June 12, 2012 and June 9, 2011,
respectively. The resolved amounts of the prdfiaring to employees and bonus to directors were
consistent with the resolutions of meeting of theal® of Directors held on February 14, 2012 and
February 15, 2011 and same amount had been chaggétst earnings of 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The appropriations of earnings for 2012 had besalved in the meeting of the Board of Directorsdhah
February 5, 2013. The appropriations and dividggedsshare were as follows:

Appropriation Dividends Per
of Earnings Share (NT$)
For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2012 Year 2012

Legal capital reserve $ 16,615,880
Special capital reserve (4,820,483)
Cash dividends to shareholders 77,773,307 $3.00

$ 89,568,704

The Board of Directors also resolved to approprateit sharing to employees and bonus to direcitors
the amounts of NT$11,115,240 thousand and NT$71t8&dsand in cash for 2012, respectively. There
IS no significant difference between the aforenmr@d resolved amounts and the amounts chargedsagain
earnings of 2012.

The appropriations of earnings, profit sharing topyees and bonus to directors for 2012 are to be
resolved in the shareholders’ meeting held on 1Un@013 (expected).

The information about the appropriations of prefiaring to employees and bonus to directors idablai
at the Market Observation Post System website.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that beceffextive on January 1, 1998, R.O.C. resident
shareholders are allowed a tax credit for theipprionate share of the income tax paid by the Gomwip
on earnings generated since January 1, 1998.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company’s Employee Stock Option Plans, congjsif the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002 Plan, were
approved by the SFB on January 6, 2005, October2003 and June 25, 2002, respectively. The
maximum number of options authorized to be gramteder the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002 Plan was
11,000 thousand, 120,000 thousand and 100,000 ahdugespectively, with each option eligible to
subscribe for one common share when exercised. optiens may be granted to qualified employees of
the Company or any of its domestic or foreign ddibsies, in which the Company’s shareholding with
voting rights, directly or indirectly, is more théifty percent (50%). The options of all the plarg valid

for ten years and exercisable at certain percestaglesequent to the second anniversary of the deaet
Under the terms of the plans, the options are gdaat an exercise price equal to the closing mfdbe
Company’s common shares listed on the TWSE ontdet glate.

Options of the plans that had never been grantéddbeen granted but subsequently canceled hagexp
as of December 31, 2012.

=27 -



Information about outstanding options for the yearded December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

Weighted-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price

(In Thousands) (NT$)
Year ended December 31, 2012
Balance, beginning of year 14,293 $31.4
Options exercised (8,213) 29.5
Options canceled (135) 34.6
Balance, end of year 5,945 34.6
Year ended December 31, 2011
Balance, beginning of year 21,437 $31.4
Options exercised (7,144) 30.5
Balance, end of year 14,293 32.1

The number of outstanding options and exerciseepritave been adjusted to reflect the distributibn o
earnings in accordance with the plans.

As of December 31, 2012, information about outstasndptions was as follows:

Options Outstanding
Weighted-average

Remaining Weighted-average
Range of Exercise Price Number of Options Contractual Life Exercise Price
(NTS) (In Thousands) (Years) (NT$)
$20.2-$28.3 3,362 0.4 $25.9
38.0- 50.1 2,583 2.0 45.8
5,945 11 34.6

As of December 31, 2012, all of the above outstamadptions were exercisable.

No compensation cost was recognized under thengntrivalue method for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011. Had the Company used the fair adsed method to evaluate the options using the
Black-Scholes model, the valuation assumptionshatviarious grant dates and pro forma results of the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2012 @kt \Rould have been as follows:

Valuation assumptions:

Expected dividend yield 1.00%-3.44%
Expected volatility 43.77%-46.15%
Risk free interest rate 3.07%-3.85%
Expected life 5 years
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21.

22.

Years Ended December 31

Net income:
Net income as reported
Pro forma net income

Earnings per share (EPS) - after income tax (NT$):
Basic EPS as reported
Pro forma basic EPS
Diluted EPS as reported
Pro forma diluted EPS

TREASURY STOCK

2012 2011

$ 166,158,802 $ 134,201,279
165,986,009 134,146,490

$6.41 $5.18
6.40 5.18
6.41 5.18
6.40 5.17

(Shares in Thousands)

Number of
Shares, Number of
Beginning Shares, End
Purpose of Treasury Stock of Year Addition Retirement of Year
Year ended December 31, 2011
Shareholders executed the appraisal right - 1,000 (1,000) -

In August 2011, at the option of the shareholddrshe Company, certain shareholders requested the
Company to buy back their shares pursuant to tlrepaay Law, which shares were subsequently retired i

November 2011.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS is computed as follows:

Amounts (Numerator)
Before After
Income Tax Income Tax

Year ended December 31, 2012

Basic EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders $183,629,948 $ 166,158,802
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - -

Number of EPS (NT$)
Shares Before After
(Denominator)  Income Income
(In Thousands) Tax Tax

25920,735 $ 708 $ 6.41
7,201

Diluted EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
(including effect of dilutive potential

common shares) $183,629,948 $166,158,802

Year ended December 31, 2011

Basic EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders $ 144,707,844 $ 134,201,279
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - -

25927936 $ 708 $ 6.41

25,914,076 $ 558 $ 5.18
10,606

Diluted EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
(including effect of dilutive potential

common shares) $144,707,844 $134,201,279
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If the Company may settle the obligation by cashjssuing shares, or in combination of both casth an
shares, profit sharing to employees which will le¢tled in shares should be included in the weighted
average number of shares outstanding in calculatfadiluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive affe
The number of shares is estimated by dividing theumnt of profit sharing to employees in stock bg th
closing price (after considering the dilutive effef dividends) of the common shares on the balaheet
date. Such dilutive effect of the potential shameeds to be included in the calculation of diluERS
until the shares of profit sharing to employeesrasolved in the shareholders’ meeting in the fwithg
year.

23. DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair values of financial instruments were a®ves:

December 31

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss $ 38,824 $ 38,824 $ 14,925 $ 14,925
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,845,052 1,845,052 2,617,134 2,617,134
Held-to-maturity financial assets 701,146 708,973 1,403,427 1,426,474
Financial assets carried at cost 483,759 - 497,835 -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss 6,274 6,274 - -
Bonds payable (including current portion) 80,000,000 80,343,413 22,500,000 22,597,115
Other long-term payables (including current
portion) 113,000 113,000

b. Methods and assumptions used in the estimatitairosalues of financial instruments

1) The aforementioned financial instruments do inotude cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
other financial assets, refundable deposits, gkam-loans, payables and guarantee deposits. The
carrying amounts of these financial instrumentsraxmate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

2) Except for derivatives, available-for-sale amddito-maturity financial assets were based orr thei
quoted market prices.

3) The fair values of those derivatives are deteechi using valuation techniques incorporating
estimates and assumptions that were consistenpwétrailing market conditions.

4) Financial assets carried at cost have no quwieds in an active market and entail an unreadgnab
high cost to obtain verifiable fair values. Theref no fair value is presented.

5) Fair value of bonds payable was based on theitegl market price.

6) Fair value of other long-term payables was bamedhe present value of expected cash flows,
which approximates their carrying amount.

c. Valuation gains/losses arising from changesain Yalue of derivatives contracts determined using

valuation techniques were recognized as net gdiNg $32,550 thousand and NT$14,925 thousand for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, resbect
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d. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, financial tasegposed to fair value interest rate risk were
NT$739,970 thousand and NT$1,418,352 thousandecésply, financial liabilities exposed to fair
value interest rate risk were NT$114,721,203 thodsand NT$48,426,528 thousand, respectively.

e. Movements of the unrealized gains or lossesnamdial instruments for the years ended Decembgr 3
2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

From
Available- Equity-
for-sale method
Financial Assets Investments Total
Balance, beginning of year $(1,508,301) $ 335,446 $ (1,172,855)
Recognized directly in shareholders’ equity (132,176) 7,147,829 7,015,653
Removed from shareholders’ equity and
recognized in earnings 2,130,523 - 2,130,523
Balance, end of year $ 490,046 $ 7,483,275 $ 7,973,321
Year Ended December 31, 2011
From
Available- Equity-
for-sale method
Financial Assets Investments Total
Balance, beginning of year $ (395,306) $ 504,595 $ 109,289
Recognized directly in shareholders’ equity (1,077,844) (165,851) (1,243,695)
Removed from shareholders’ equity and

recognized in earnings (35,151) - (35,151)
Effect of spin-off - (3,298) (3,298)
Balance, end of year $(1,508,301) $ 335,446 $ (1,172,855)

f. Information about financial risks

1) Market risk. The derivative financial instruntercategorized as financial assets/liabilitiesadt f
value through profit or loss are mainly used todeethe market exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign-currency assets and liabilities; thereftine, market exchange rate risk of derivatives hell
offset by the foreign exchange risk of these hedtgds. Available-for-sale financial assets and
held-to-maturity financial assets held by the Conypare mainly fixed-interest-rate debt securities
and overseas publicly traded stock; therefore fltietuations in market interest rates and market
prices will result in changes in fair values of dbedebt securities and the fluctuations in market
prices will result in changes in fair values of maas publicly traded stock.

2) Credit risk. Credit risk represents the potdribss that would be incurred by the Company éf th
counter-parties or third-parties breached contrad&nancial instruments with positive fair values
at the balance sheet date are evaluated for crs#tit The Company evaluated whether the
financial instruments for any possible counterdpartor third-parties are reputable financial
institutions, business enterprises, and governmgencies and accordingly, the Company believed
that the Company’s exposure to credit risk wassigptificant.

3) Liquidity risk. The Company has sufficient ogténg capital and bank facilities to meet cash

needs upon settlement of derivative financial imsgnts and bonds payable. Therefore, the
liquidity risk is low.

-31-



4) Cash flow interest rate risk. The Company nyainkests in fixed-interest-rate debt securities.
Therefore, cash flows are not expected to fluctgageificantly due to changes in market interest
rates.

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company engages in business transactionshetfolowing related parties:
a. Subsidiaries
TSMC China
TSMC Solar
TSMC Europe
TSMC Global
TSMC Japan
TSMC North America
b. Investees
Xintec (holding a controlling financial interest)
VIS (accounted for using the equity method)
GUC (accounted for using the equity method)
SSMC (accounted for using the equity method)
c. Indirect subsidiaries
TSMC Design Technology Canada, Inc. (TSMC Canada)
TSMC Technology, Inc. (TSMC Technology)
WaferTech, LLC (WaferTech)
d. Indirect investees
VisEra Technology Company, Ltd. (VisEra) (accourftadusing the equity method)
e. Others

Related parties over which the Company has cootreixercises significant influence but with which
the Company had no material transactions.

Transactions with the aforementioned parties, dtfien those disclosed in other notes, are sumnthage

follows:
201z 2011
Amount % Amount %
For the yee
Sale:
TSMC North Americ $ 326,768,46 64 $ 234,902,04 56
Other: 4 567,65 1 3,882.80

1
$ 331,336,12 $ 238,784,84 57

HU‘I
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Purchase
TSMC Chin:
WaferTecl
VIS
SSMC
Other:

Manufacturing expenses
Xintec (outsourcing and rel
VisEra (outsourcing
VIS (rent
Other:

Research and development expe
TSMC Technology (primarily consulting fe
TSMC Canada (primarily consulting fi
TSMC Europe (primarily consulting fe
VIS (rent
Other:

Marketing expense- commissiol
TSMC Europ
TSMC Japa
TSMC Chin
Other:

Sales of property, plant and equipment and ¢
assets
TSMC Chin:
VIS
VisEre
Other:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
other assets
TSMC Chin
GUC
TSMC Sola
VIS
Other:

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %

$ 15,708,44 26 10,392,18 21
8,026,11. 14 7,305,87! 15
4.475,67. 8 5,577,76. 12
3,638,63. 6 3,949,171 8
- - 124.,67. -
$ 31,848,86 54 27,34¢,67¢ 56
$ 180,76¢ - 260,25( -
14,58¢ - 14,58¢ -
- - 5,90: -
23C - - -
$ 195,58 - 280,74( -
$ 713,32: 2 534,80 2
206,89 1 192,61t 1
49,76: - 45,48¢ -
- - 1,98z -
18,37: - 30,60¢ -
$ 988.,35:. 3 805,49t 3
$ 345,90t 14 357,58: 15
277,37- 12 284,64 12
72,37: 3 64,90° 3
20,64 1 22,04¢ 1
$ 716,29¢ 30 729,18: 31
$ 46,94: 51 2,885,84 86
14,53: 16 36,00¢ 1
9,00( 10 - -
10 - 73,13: 2
$ 70,482 77 2,994 98 89
$ 216,08« - 70,49: -
47,05: - 1,81- -
14,44¢ - - -
- - 45,47 -
1,22¢ - - -
$ 278.80° - 117,77t -
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Non-operating income and ga
VIS (primarily technical service incorn
SSMC (primarily technical service incor
TSMC China (primarily technical servi

income and gains on disposal of property,

plant and equipment)
Other:

Non-operating expenses and los
TSMC China (losses on disposal of prope
plant and equipment)
Xintec (settlement los
Other:

As of December :

Receivable
TSMC North Americ
Other:

Other receivable
VIS
TSMC North Americ
SSMC
TSMC Chin:
WaferTecl
Other:

Payable
TSMC Chin:
WaferTecl
VIS
SSMC
Other:

Deferred credits (other asst
TSMC China
VIS
VisEre
Other:

2012 2011

Amount % Amount %
$ 261,78l 2 $ 227,02: 3
221,211 2 193,78: 3
984 - 96,050 1

14,74¢ - 11,21 -
$ 498,72( 4 $ 528,06t 7
$ 18,699 - $ - -
- - 19,68¢ 1

132 - - -
$ 18,83 - $ 19,68t¢ 1
$ 40,748,90 99 $ 24,661,10 99
238,53¢ 1 116,43 1
$ 40,987,444 _10C $ 2477753 10C
$ 122,89 45 $ 87,50° 46
88,82" 32 23,88" 13
56,79¢ 21 34,26( 18
2,68¢ 1 23,68¢ 13
1,59¢ 1 14,19¢ 8
2,16¢ - 4,49( 2
$ 274 .96. _10C 188,02¢ 10C
$ 1,616,34 50 $ 94682¢ 32
580,06« 18 420,45¢ 14
364,79 11 987,93 33
351,38t 11 336,03 11
317,75 10 301,32 1C
3,230,34. _10C 2,992.58. _10C
$ 17,27: 2 % (1,499 -
(7,806 (1) - -
94¢ - - -
8 - - -
$ 10,42 1 $ (1,499 -
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The sales prices and payment terms to relatedepaxiere not significantly different from those afes to
third parties. For other related party transaajqgsrices and terms were determined in accordaiitte w
mutual agreements.

The Company leased certain buildings, facilitiesj anachinery and equipment from Xintec. The lease
terms and prices were determined in accordance mittual agreements. The rental expense was paid
monthly and the related expenses were classifielbrumanufacturing expenses. The lease expired in
June 2011.

The Company leased certain office space and fasilfrom VIS. The lease terms and prices were

determined in accordance with mutual agreementsie réntal expense was paid monthly and the related
expenses were classified under research and devefdpexpenses and manufacturing expenses. The
lease expired in April 2011.

The Company deferred the disposal gains/lossess(fitd under other assets and deferred credits)ede
from sales of property, plant and equipment anérodissets to TSMC China, VIS, VisEra and otherd, an
then recognized such gains/losses (classified undefoperating gains and losses) over the depieciab
lives of the disposed assets.

The Company borrowed funds from related partieas@ified under other payables to related parties).
Additional disclosures consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31, 20:

Maximum
Balance Interest
Financing Name (In Thousands) Ending Balance Rate Interest Expense Interest Payable
TSMC Globa $ 5,807,60 $ - 0.3911Y% $ 4,87( $ -
(US$ 200,000
Year Ended December 31, 20:
Maximum
Balance Interest
Financing Name (In Thousands) Ending Balance Rate Interest Expense Interest Payable
TSMC Globa $ 24,684,00 - 0.3544Yy $ 22,29! $ -

(US$ 850,00()
Compensation of directors and management personnel:

Years Ended December &

201z 2011
Salaries, incentives and special compens $ 757,98 $ 654972
Bonus 538,07 445 ,68:

$ 1,296,06 $ 1,100,65:

The information about the compensation of directord management personnel is available in the &nnua
report for the shareholders’ meeting. Total conspéion expense for the year ended December 31, 2012
includes estimated profit sharing to employees laorils to directors of the Company that relate t©220
but will be paid in the following year. The actuaiount will be finalized and approved upon the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting in 2013he Total compensation for the year ended December 3
2011 included the bonuses appropriated from easnifigg011 which was approved by the shareholders’
meeting held in 2012.
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25.

26.

SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM LEASES

The Company leases several parcels of land frorBtience Park Administration. These operatingdeas
expire on various dates from March 2013 to July283d can be renewed upon expiration.

As of December 31, 2012, future lease payments agfellows:

Year Amount
2013 $ 485,96:.
201¢ 468,14
201¢ 457,69«
201¢ 447 53:
2017 409,82
2018 and thereatft 3,655,822

$ 5,924 98
SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Significant commitments and contingencies of then@any as of December 31, 2012, excluding those
disclosed in other notes, were as follows:

a. Under a technical cooperation agreement witludtréhl Technology Research Institute, the R.O.C.
Government or its designee approved by the Companyse up to 35% of the Company’s capacity if
the Company’s outstanding commitments to its custsmare not prejudiced. The term of this
agreement is for five years beginning from Jandard987 and is automatically renewed for successive
periods of five years unless otherwise terminatedither party with one year prior notice.

b. Under a Shareholders Agreement entered intoMithips and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March 30,
1999, the parties formed a joint venture compar8M6, which is an integrated circuit foundry in
Singapore. The Company’s equity interest in SSMIS B2%. Nevertheless, Philips parted with its
semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP B.\Geptember 2006. The Company and
NXP B.V. purchased all the SSMC shares owned by Eb@stments Pte Ltd. pro rata according to
the Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 200&er the purchase, the Company and NXP B.V.
currently own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSkt@res respectively. The Company and
Philips (now NXP B.V.) are required, in the aggrtegao purchase at least 70% of SSMC's capacity,
but the Company alone is not required to purchasesrthan 28% of the capacity. If any party
defaults on the commitment and the capacity utithiraof SSMC fall below a specific percentage of it
capacity, the defaulting party is required to congage SSMC for all related unavoidable costs.

c. In August 2006, TSMC filed a lawsuit against 8&mductor Manufacturing International Corporation,
SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC Americas (aggregatelyrreteto as “SMIC”) in the Superior Court of
California for Alameda County for breach of a 208§eement that settled an earlier trade secret
misappropriation and patent infringement litigatibatween the parties, as well as for trade secret
misappropriation, seeking injunctive relief and mtamy damages. In September 2006, SMIC filed a
cross-complaint against TSMC in the same courtgmite breach of settlement agreement, implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. SMIC dléed a civil action against TSMC in November
2006 with the Beijing People’s High Court allegitgfamation and breach of good faith. On June 10,
2009, the Beijing People’s High Court ruled in faxad TSMC and dismissed SMIC’s lawsuit. On
November 4, 2009, after a two-month trial, a junythe California action found SMIC to have both
breached the 2005 settlement agreement and migajgienl TSMC's trade secrets. TSMC has
subsequently settled both lawsuits with SMIC. Bang to the new settlement agreement, the parties
have agreed to the entry of a stipulated judgmeffévor of TSMC in the California action, and t@th
dismissal of SMIC’s appeal against the Beijing Higburt's finding in favor of TSMC. Under the
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new settlement agreement and the related stipulatigenent, SMIC has agreed to make cash payments
by installments to TSMC totaling US$200 million, ish are in addition to the US$135 million
previously paid to TSMC under the 2005 settlemegte@ment, and, conditional upon relevant
government regulatory approvals, to issue to TSM@tal of 1,789,493,218 common shares of
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpanatiand a three-year warrant to purchase
695,914,030 common shares (subject to adjustmdén§emiconductor Manufacturing International

Corporation at HK$1.30 per share (subject to adjast).

TSMC has acquired the above mentioned

common shares in July 2010, which are recordedwétiailable for sale financial assets, and obthine
the subsequent cash settlement income in accordédticthe agreement.

d. In June 2010, Keranos, LLC. filed a lawsuithe 1J.S. District Court for the Eastern DistrictTaxas
alleging that TSMC, TSMC North America, and seveater leading technology companies infringe

three expired U.S. patents.

In response, TSMC, CPdrth America, and several co-defendants in

the Texas case filed a lawsuit against KeranofienU.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California in November 2010, seeking a judgmentlateny that they did not infringe the asserted
patents, and that those patents are invalid. Ttvesditigations have been consolidated into algsing

case in the U.S. District Court for the Easterntiinsof Texas.

this time.

The outcome cannot be determinied a

e. In December 2010, Ziptronix, Inc. filed a conplan the U.S. District Court for the Northern Dist
of California accusing TSMC, TSMC North America amide other company of allegedly infringing

several U.S. patents.

The outcome cannot be dietedmt this time.

f. The Company joined the Customer Co-Investmemigfm of ASML Holding N.V. (ASML) and
entered into the investment agreement in AugusR20The agreement includes an investment of
EURB837,816 thousand by TSMC Global to acquire 5% 9KL’s equity with a lock-up period of 2.5

Both parties also

signed the research and development funding agraeamnel the Company will provide EUR277,000

thousand to ASML'’s research and development progjfaom 2013 to 2017.

years.

27. SPIN-OFF BUSINESS INFORMATION

TSMC Global has acquired the aforementicegpdty in October 2012.

To foster a stronger sense of corporate entreprsimi@uand facilitate business specializations iteoito
strengthen overall profitability and operationdi@éncy, the Company transferred its solid stégéting
and solar businesses into its wholly-owned, newtpiporated subsidiaries, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar,

on August 1, 2011.

amounted to NT$2,270,000 thousand and NT$11,180af@0@and, respectively.

The book values of transferred assets and liaslitvere as follows:

Current asse

Long-term investmen

Property, plant and equipm:

Other asse

Current liabilitie

Other liabilities

Capital surplu

Unrealized gain/loss on financial instrume
Cumulative translation adjustme

As of August 1, 2011, the roetikbvalues transferred to TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar

TSMC SSL TSMC Solar Total
$ 431,61 $ 893,58 $ 1,325,19
2,87 7,912,711 7,915,58:
1,929,56: 2,372,21. 4,301,77
234,69t 201,67 436,37
(292,729 (337,43 (630,16
(36,279) (25,219 (61,49()
- (56,09 (56,09
- (3,299 (3,299
25¢€ 221,86 222.12(
$ 2,270,00 $ 11,180,00 $ 13,450,00
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28. EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION OF FOREIGN-CURRENCY F INANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

The significant financial assets and liabilitiesidminated in foreign currencies were as follows:

December 3.
201z 2011
Foreign Foreign
Currencies Exchange Rate  Currencies Exchange Rate
(In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note)

Financial asse
Monetary item

usk $ 2,255,39 29.03¢ $ 1,566,21. 30.28¢

EUR 117,13t 38.3¢ 124,42t 39.27

JPY 35,290,83 0.335: 33,073,33 0.389’
Non-monetary iterr

HKD 492,01- 3.7¢ 671,06( 3.9C
Investments accounted f

using equity method

usk 3,445,33 29.03¢ 2,983,86 30.28¢

EUR 6,141 38.3¢€ 5,22¢ 39.27

JPY 424,85! 0.335: 414,68( 0.389:

RMB 3,838,26 4.6€ 2,823,95. 4.81
Financial liabilitie:
Monetary item

usD 2,171,31 29.03¢ 1,626,12 30.28¢

EUR 245,23 38.3¢ 106,93: 39.27

JPY 43,052,40 0.335: 34,942,42 0.389:

Note: Exchange rate represents the number of Nolfard for which one foreign currency could be
exchanged.
29. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
Following are the additional disclosures requirgdhe SFB for the Company and its investees:
a. Financings provided: Please see Table 1 atfache
b. Endorsement/guarantee provided: None;
c. Marketable securities held: Please see Taht&a2hed;

d. Marketable securities acquired and disposed obsts or prices of at least NT$100 million or 20%o
the paid-in capital: Please see Table 3 attached,;

e. Acquisition of individual real estate propertsscosts of at least NT$100 million or 20% of gaad-in
capital: Please see Table 4 attached;

f. Disposal of individual real estate propertiepates of at least NT$100 million or 20% of thaedpa
capital: None;
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g. Total purchases from or sales to related paofi@s least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-ispital:
Please see Table 5 attached,;

h. Receivables from related parties amounting tleadt NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital
Please see Table 6 attached,;

i. Names, locations, and related information ofestees over which the Company exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 7 attached;

j- Information about derivatives of investees owhiich the Company has a controlling interest:

Do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting

1) TSMC China
TSMC China entered into forward exchange contrdoting the year ended December 31, 2012 to
manage exposures due to foreign exchange rateudliimhs. Outstanding forward exchange
contracts as of December 31, 2012 consisted dbtloaving:

Contract Amount
Maturity Date (In Thousands

Sell US$/Buy RME January 201 US$20,000/RMB124,735

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net lossgagafrom forward exchange contracts of
TSMC China amounted to NT$5,068 thousand.

2) Xintec
Xintec entered into forward exchange contracts duihe year ended December 31, 2012 to
manage exposures due to foreign exchange rateudlimhs. Outstanding forward exchange

contracts as of December 31, 2012 consisted dbtlwsving:

Contract Amount
Maturity Date (In Thousands

Sell US$/Buy NTY January 2013 to March 2C US$13,700/NT$398,239

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net gaisia@from forward exchange contracts of Xintec
amounted to NT$19,339 thousand.

3) TSMC Partners
TSMC Partners entered into forward exchange castiduring the year ended December 31, 2012
to manage exposures due to foreign exchange wateiditions. No forward exchange contract was

outstanding as of December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net lossgagafrom forward exchange contracts of
TSMC Partners amounted to NT$62,282 thousand.
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4) TSMC Solar

5)

TSMC Solar entered into derivative contracts dutimg year ended December 31, 2012 to manage
exposures due to foreign exchange rate fluctuatio@tstanding forward exchange contracts as
of December 31, 2012 consisted of the following:

Contract Amount

Maturity Date (In Thousands
Sell NT$/Buy US:! January 201 NT$457,39/US$15,80(
Sell NT$/Buy JP* January 201 NT$22,055/JPY65,0(

Outstanding cross currency swap contracts as oéieer 31, 2012 consisted of the following:

Range of Range of
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (In Thousands) Paid Received
January 201 NT$1,025,039/US$35,2: - 0.06%

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net losgesgafrom derivative financial instruments of
TSMC Solar amounted to NT$37,824 thousand.

TSMC SSL
TSMC SSL entered into derivative contracts durimg year ended December 31, 2012 to manage
exposures due to foreign exchange rate fluctuatio@tstanding forward exchange contracts as

of December 31, 2012 consisted of the following:

Contract Amount

Maturity Date (In Thousands
Sell NT$/Buy US! January 201 NT$13:,00¢4US34,60(
Sell NT$/BuyJPY January 201 NT$22,054%JPY65,00(

Outstanding cross currency swap contracts as oéieer 31, 2012 consisted of the following:

Range of Range of
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (In Thousands) Paid Received
January 201 NT$58,100/US$2,0( - 0.06%

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net losgesgafrom derivative financial instruments of
TSMC SSL amounted to NT$13,882 thousand.

Meet the criteria for hedge accounting

1) Xintec

Xintec monitors and manages the financial risk ulgiothe analysis of business environment and
evaluation of entity’s financial risks. Furtherinkec seeks to reduce the effects of future cash
flow related interest rate exposures by primarging derivative financial instruments.
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Xintec is exposed to interest rate risk becauskitg-term bank loans bear floating interest rates.
Accordingly, Xintec enters into interest rate sveamtract to hedge such a cash flow interest rate
risk. The interest rate swap contract of Xintes\aae in August 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the adjusttmeshareholder’'s equity amounted to a net
gain of NT$5 thousand for the above Xintec's insemate swap contract. The amount removed
from shareholder’s equity and recognized as adossunted to NT$227 thousand.

2) TSMC Global

TSMC Global monitors and manages the financial riekough the analysis of business
environment and evaluation of entity’s financiaks. Further, TSMC Global seeks to reduce the
effects of future cash flow related exchange raggosures by primarily using derivative financial
instruments.

TSMC Global entered into forward exchange contraxtsedge cash flow risk arising from foreign
exchange rate fluctuations of an expected equaiyseiction. The forward exchange contracts of
TSMC Global were due in October 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the adjustimeshareholder’s equity amounted to a net
gain of NT$8,833 thousand for the above TSMC Glslfalward exchange contracts.

k. Information on investment in Mainland China

1) The name of the investee in Mainland China,nttaén businesses and products, its issued capital,
method of investment, information on inflow or dotf of capital, percentage of ownership, equity
in the net gain or net loss, ending balance, ammadived as dividends from the investee, and the
limitation on investee: Please see Table 8 atthche

2) Significant direct or indirect transactions withe investee, its prices and terms of payment,
unrealized gain or loss, and other related infolwnatvhich is helpful to understand the impact of
investment in Mainland China on financial report®lease see Note 24.

30. OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Company has provided the operating segmertkosiise in the consolidated financial statements.
31. THE AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Bo&directors and authorized for issue on Febriary
2013.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

FINANCINGS PROVIDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 1

Maximum . Collateral . . Financing
Ending Balance Amount Financing ;
Financing Balance for the (USS$in Actually Drawn Transaction Allowance for Limits for Each Company’s
No. Counter-party | Financial Statement Account Period (US$ in . Interest Rate | Nature for Financing Reason for Financing . Total Financing
Company Thousands) (US$ in Amounts Bad Debt ltem Value Borrowing .
Thousands) (Note 4) Thousands) Company Amount Limits
(Note 4) (Note 3)

1 |TSMC Partnet |TSMC Chini |Other receivables fromrelat| $ 7,259,500 | $ 3,774,941 | $  3,774,94( | 0.25%-0.26% |The need for shc-term Purchase equipme $ - -1 S $ 38,63560 | $ 38,635,60
parties (US$ 250,000)(US$ 130,000)(UsS$ 130,000 financing (Note 1

TSMC Sola Other receivables from relat 1,161,521 - - - The need for shc-term Operating capita - - 15,454,24 38,635,60
parties (US$ 40,000 financing (Note 1

TSMC SSI Other receivables from relat 871,14( - - - The need for shc-term Operatilg capital - - 15,454,24 38,635,60
parties (US$ 30,000 financing (Note 1

2 |TSMC TSMC Sola Other receivables from relat: 2,323,04 2,323,041 1,495,45 | 0.21%-0.23% [The nted for shoi-term Operating capiti - - 5,322,90 13,307,26

Development parties (US$ 80,000)(UsS$ 80,000)(US$ 51,500 financing (Notes 1 and 8) (Note 5

TSMC SSI Other receivables from relat 2,613,42 2,613,421 203,26t 0.24% The need for shc-term Operating capiti - - 5,322,90 13,307,26

parties (US$ 90,000)(US$  90,000)(US$ 7,000 financing (Notes 1 and 8) (Note 5

3 |TSMC Globa [TSMC Other receivables from relat: 5,807,60! - - - The need for shc-term Support the parei - - 49,954,38 49,954,38
parties (US$ 200,000 financing company'’s short-term (Note 2

operation requirement

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The total amount for lending to a compamyftinding for a short-term period shall not excesdpercent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC Parrerd TSMC Development, respectively.
TSMC or offshore sdimies whose voting shares are 100% owned, djrecindirectly, by TSMC are not subject to theoab restrictions.

of the borrower’s net worth.

are 90% or more owned, directly or indirectly, ByMC. However, financing limits for those subsidarshall be no more than forty percent (40%) eflémder’s net worth.

The total amount for lending to a compaomnyfiinding for a short-term period shall not excesupercent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC Globadi addition, the total amount lendable to any bagower shall be no more than thirty percent (B0%he borrower’s net worth.

offshore subsidiaries whose voting shares are 100fed, directly or indirectly, by TSMC are not sedijto the above restrictions.

The total amount available for lending mag shall not exceed the net worth of TSMC PartAe&MC Development and TSMC Global, respectively.

The maximum balance for the period andrentialance represents the amounts approved by Bé&idectors.

The amount was determined based on théeguitiancial statements in accordance with locabanting principles.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 2

Held Company Name

Marketable Securities Type and Nae

Relationship with the Company

Financial StatemenAccount

December 31, 201

Shares/Units
(In Thousands)

Carrying Value

(Foreign Currencies

in Thousands)

Percentage of
Ownership (%)

Market Value or Net

Asset Value Note

(Foreign Currencies
in Thousands)

TSMC

TSMC Solar

Corpoiate bon
Nan Ya Plastics Corporati

China Steel Corporatit

Stock

Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpanm
TSMC Globa

TSMC Partnetr
VIS

SSMC

TSMC Sola
TSMC North Americ
TSMC SSi
Xintec

GUC

TSMC Europ
TSMC apar
TSMC Koret

United Industrial Gases Co., L
Shir-Etsu Handotai Taiwan Co., L

W.K. Technology Fund I

Func
Horizon Ventures Fur
Crimson Asia Capita

Capita
TSMC Chin:

VTAF I

VTAF II
Emerging Allianc
TSMC GN

Stock
Motect

TSMC Solar Eurog
TSMC Solar N/

Capita
VTAF Il

Subsidiar

Subsidiar
Investee accounted for using equity me
Investee accounted for using eq methot
Subsidiar
Subsidiar
Subsidiar
Investee with a controlling financial inter
Investee accounted for using equity me
Subsidiar
Subsidiar
Subsidiar

Subsidiar

Subsidiar
Subsidiar
Subsidiar
Subsidiar

Investee accounted for using equity me
Subsidiar

Subsidiar

Investee accounted for using equity me

Held-to-maturity financial asse
V4

Available-for-sale financial asse
Investments accounted for using ety
method

Financial assets carried at ¢
VA

/7

Financial assets carried at ¢
VA

Investments accounted for using eqt
method

Investments accounted for using eqt
method
n

Vi

Investments aounted for using equit
method

1,277,95i
1

988,26¢
628,22:
314
1,118,001
11,00(
430,40(
94,95(
46,68¢

6
80

19,30(
10,50(

4,00(

87,48(

$ 549,88
151,26!

1,845,50
49,954,38

38,635,12
9,462,03
6,710,95
6,031,36
3,209,28
2,411,21.
1,550,31
1,222,97.

235,76:
142,41:

26,93t
193,58
105,00(

40,00(

89,91¢
55,25¢
17,828,68

1,047,28!
563,05¢
167,35¢

65,001

2,998,41
175,01t

44,03;

1,322,02

N/A
N/A

10C
10C
10C

1C

10C

5C
98
99
10C

2C

10C
10C

$ 557,90(
151,07:

1,845,05.
49,954,38

38,635,60
12,658,70
6,496,97.
6,008,08
3,209,28
2,411,21.
1,550,31
4,692,131
253,76:
142,41:
26,93t
390,21(
341,74.
34,22!

89,91¢
55,25¢
17,886,31

1,025,27!
556,86
167,35¢

65,001

2,761,39
175,01t

44,03]

1,322,02

-43 -

(Continued




December 31, 201

Carrying Value

Market Value or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units . . Percentage of Asset Value Note
(Foreign Currencies . . .
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
TSMC SSI Stock
TSMC Lighting NA Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt 1 $ 2,86¢ 10C $ 2,86¢
method
TSMC GN Stock
TSMC Sola Investee accounted for using equity me'  |Investments accounted for using eqt 4,29¢ 23,07¢ - 23,07¢
method
TSMC SSI Investee accounted for using equity me' " 3,42C 19,15° 1 19,15°
TSMC Partnel Stock
TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC Developme Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt - US$ 604,36 10C US$ 604,36
method
VisEra Holding Compar Investee accounted foring equity metho " 43,00( USY 104,54( 49 USY 104,54(
TSMC Technolog Subsidiar y - uss 11,72 10C uUss 11,72
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc.LDE. Subsidiar " 14,15 US$ 10,47¢ 97 US$ 10,47¢
(ISDF II)
InveStar Semiconduct Development Fund, Inc. (ISD Subsidiar y 787 US$ 7,80¢ 97 USs$ 7,80¢
TSMC Canad Subsidiar ” 2,30¢( US$ 4,58¢ 10C US$ 4,58¢
Mcube Inc Investee accounted for using equity me' " 6,33¢ - 25 -
Func
Shanhai Walden Venture Capital Enterpi - Financial assets carried at ¢ - USss 5,00( 6 USst 5,00(
TSMC North Americ Stock
Spansion In - Available-for-sale financial asse 27C US$ 3,75: - US$ 3,75:
TSMC Devdopmen Stock
WaferTecl Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt 293,63 USY 262,05: 10C US$ 262,05:
method
Emerging Allianc Common stoc
Audience, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 32 US¢ 33t - US¢ 33t
Global Investment Holding In - Financial assets carried at ¢ 11,12« US$ 3,06t 6 US$ 3,06t
RichWave Technology Col - " 4,07¢ US$ 1,54¢ 1C US$ 1,54t
Preferred stoc
Next 10, Inc - Financial assetzarried at co: 8 US$ 50C - US$ 50C
QST Holdings, LL( - y - US$ 14z 4 US$ 14z
Capita
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC (VTA Holdin¢ Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt - - 7 -
method
VTAF I Common stoc
Audience, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 20z US¢ 2,107 1 USs¢ 2,107
Sentelic - Financial assets carried at ¢ 1,80¢ USs$ 2,607 9 USs$ 2,607
Aether Systems, In - " 1,80( US$ 1,701 23 US$ 1,701
RichWave Technology Col - ” 1,267 usd 1,03¢ 3 US$ 1,03¢
(Continued
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December 31, 201

Carrying Value

Market Value or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units . . Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) (Fo_relgn Currencies Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
VTAF II Preferred stoc
5V Technologies, In - Financial assets carriedcos 2,89( USs$ 2,16¢ 4 US$ 2,16¢
Agquantie - " 4,55¢ USs$ 4,31¢ 2 USst 4,31¢
Cresta Technology Corporati - " 92 US$ 28 - USs$ 28
Impinj, Inc. - " 711 USs$ 1,10( - USs$ 1,10(
Next 10, Inc - " 17¢ USst 1,21¢ 1 USst 1,21¢
QST Holdings, LL( - " - USst 59:¢ 13 USst 59:¢
Capita
VTA Holdings Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt - - 31 -
method
VTAF 1l Common stoc
Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Lt Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt 15,64: US$ 2,12( 58 USs§ 2,12(
method
InvenSense, In - Available-for-sale financial asse 93 USst 1,037 - Ust 1,037
Accton Wireless Broadband Cc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 2,24¢ USt 31t 6 USst 31t
Preferred stck
BridgeLux, Inc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 7,522 USs$ 9,37¢ 3 Ust 9,37¢
GTBF, Inc - " 1,15¢ USss 1,50( N/A USss 1,50(
LiquidLeds Lighting Corg - ” 1,60( usd 80C 11 uUst 80C
Neoconix, Inc - " 4,147 USs$ 4,841 4 USss 4,841
Powervation, Ltc - " 50¢ USst 7,93¢ 1€ USst 7,93¢
Stion Corp - " 8,152 USY 45,467 15 USY 45,467
Tilera, Inc - " 3,89( USs$ 3,02t 2 USss 3,02t
Validity Sensors, In - " 11,19: US$ 4,197 4 USst 4,1<7
Capita
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fun Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt - uUst 36¢ 10C uUst 36¢
method
VTA Holdings Subsidiar " - - 62 -
ISDF Common stoc
Integrated Memry Logic, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 1,402 USs$ 4,322 2 USst 4,322
Memsic, Inc - " 1,28¢ USst 4,29¢ 5 Ust 4,29¢
Preferred stoc
Sonics, Inc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 23C USst 497 2 USst 497
ISDF I Common stoc
Memsic, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 1,07z USst 3,581 4 Ust 3,581
Alchip Technologies Limite - Financial assets carried at ¢ 7,52( USs$ 3,66¢ 14 USss 3,66¢
Sonics, Inc - " 278 US¢ 1C 3 USs$ 1C
Goyatek Technology, Col - y 74E US$ 16z 6 US$ 162
Auden Technology MFG. Co., L - y 1,03t US$ 22C 3 US$ 22C
Preferred stoc
Sonics, Inc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 264 Ust 455 3 Ust 45t
(Continued
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December 31, 201
Carrving Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units (Forei yn gurrencies Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) relg Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) in Thousands)
Xintec Capita
Compositech Lt - Financial assets carried at ¢ 587 $ - 3 $ -
TSMC Solar Eurog Stock
TSMC Sdar Europe Gmbl Subsidiar Investments accounted for using eqt - EUR  4,46¢ 10C EUR  4,46¢
method
TSMC Globa Stock
ASML - Available-for-sale financial asse 20,99: US$1,334,50 5 US$1,334,50
Money markt fund
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshi - Available-for-sale financial asse 50 uUst 5C N/A uUst 5C
Corporate bon
Aust + Nz Banking Grot - Held-to-maturity financial asse 20,00( US$ 19,99¢ N/A US$ 20,03
Commonwealth Bank of Australia - " 25,00( Uss 25,00( N/A USY 25,00¢
Commonwealth Bank of Australia - " 25,00( Us$ 25,00( N/A USY 25,04
Deutsche Bank AG London - " 20,00( Us$ 19,99¢ N/A UsS$ 20,00°
JP Morgan Chase + Co. - " 35,00 USY 35,00¢ N/A USY 34,95¢
Westpac Banking Corp. - " 25,00( Usts  25,00( N/A USs 25,01
(Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT C OSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 3

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposa Ending Balance (Note
. Gain/Loss on
o . . Amount Amount Amount Carrying Value . Amount
Company Name Marketable Securities Financial Statement Counter-party Natgre Of. Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign (Foreign Dlqusal Shares/Units (Foreign
Type and Name Account Relationship 2 2 2 2 (Foreign 2
(In Thousands)| Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currencies in |(In Thousands)| Currenciesin | Currencies in >~ . | (In Thousands)| Currencies in
Currencies in
Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands)
Thousands)
TSMC Corporate bon
Nan Ya Plastics Corporati Held-to-maturity financial - - - | $ 1,099,62 -1 $ - -1 $ 550,00( | $ 550,00( | $ - -1 % 549,88:
assets
China Steel Corporatis ” - - - 303,79¢ - - - 150,00( 150,00( - - 151,26!
Stock
Semiconductor Manufacturir  |Available-for-sale financia - - 1,789,49: 2,617,13. - - 511,55 612,83 502,20( 110,63« 1,277,95 1,845,05;
International Corporation assets
TSMC SSI Investments accounted f - Subsidiar 227,00( 1,746,89: 203,40( 2,034,00! - - - - 430,40( 2,411,21;
using equity method
Capita
TSMC GN Investments accounted f - Subsidiar - - - 100,00 - - - - - 65,001
using equity method
TSMC Partner  |Corporate bon
General Elec Cap Corp. M Held-to-maturity financial - - - | US$ 20,01: - - - | US$ 20,00 | US$ 20,00( - - -
assets
General Elec Cap Corp. M ” - - - | US$ 20,05¢ - - - | US$ 20,00 | US$ 20,00( - - -
VTAF I Preferred stoc
Power Analog Mcroelectronic  [Financial assets carried at ¢ - - 7,330 | US$ 3,48 - - 7,33(| US$ 3,34f | USY 3,482 | USY (137 - -
VTAF Il Stock
InvenSense, In Available-for-sale financia - - 79€¢ | US$ 7,932 - - 705 | US§ 7,46(C | USS 861 | US§ 6,59¢ 93 | USY 1,03%
assets
TSMC Globa Stock
ASML Available-for-sale financia - - - - 20,99¢ | US$ 1,085,47. - - - - 20,99¢ | US$1,334,50.
assets
Government bor
Societe De Financement De | |Held-to-maturity financial - - 15,00 | US$ 15,00( - - 15,000 | US§ 15,00C | US$ 15,00( - - -
assets
Corporate bon
Nationwide Buiding Societ-UK [Held-to-maturity financial - - 8,00( | USY 8,00( - - 8,00( | US$ 8,00C | US$ 8,00 - - -
Government Guarantee assets
Westpac Banking Corp. 12/12 | " - - 5,00C | US$ 5,00( - - 5,00( | US§ 5,00 | US§ 5,00( - - -
ISDF Common stoc
Integrated Memory Logic, In  [Available-for-sale financia - - 2,161 | US$ 6,28¢ 127 - 88€ | US§ 3,152 | USY 207 | USs 2,94t 1,402 | US§ 4,32Z
assets
TSMC Solar Stock
Europe TSMC Solar Europe Gmkt Investments accounted f - Subsidiar - | EUR 5,10: - | EUR 2,50( - - - - - | EUR 4,46¢
using equity method
Note: The ending balance includes the amortizatfqgsremium/discount on bonds investments, traimslaadjustments, equity in earnings/losses of gquithod investees and other adjustments to lomg-itevestments accounted for using equity method.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT COSTS OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 4

Company| Types of Transaction Date Transaction Payment Term Counter-party Nature of Prior Transaction of Related Countel-party Price Purpose of Other

Name | Property Amount Relationshipg  Owner Relationships | Transfer Date | Amount Reference Acquisition Terms

TSMC Fak February 7, 2012 t $  249,91. By the constructiol [MandarTech Interiors In - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 27, 2012 progress purpose

Fak February 7, 2012t 219,80 By the constructiol || Domain Industrial Co., Lt - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 27, 2012 progress purpose

Fak February 13, 2012 1 5,015,65! |By the constructiol |Da Cin Construction C., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 28, 2012 progress purpose

Fak February 13, 2012 1 1,766,33. |By the constructiol |Fu Tsu Construction Co., L - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 27, 2012 progress purpose

Fak Marck 19, 2012 to 2,958,931 |By the constructiol |China Steel Structure Co., Lti - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 27, 2012 progress purpose

Fak March 19, 2012 tc 185,11! |By the constructiol |Toko Stee Structure - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
July 27, 2012 progress Corporation purpose

Fak May 28, 2012 to 320,70! |By the constructiol |Tasa Construction Corporati - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
November 27, 2012 progress purpose

Fak August 28, 2012 t 131,67¢ |By the constructiol |Shiny G&M Associated Co - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
December 26, 2012 progress Ltd. purpose

Lanc November 21, 201 963,60( |By the contrac Miaoli County Governme! - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
purpose
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAS T NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

TABLE 5

Company Name

Related Party

Nature of Relationships

Transaction Details

Abnormal Transaction

Notes/Accounts Payable o
Receivable

Note

Purchasey/ Amount % to Pavment Terms Unit Price | Payment Terms | Ending Balance % to
Sales |[(US$ in Thousands) Total y (Note) (Note) (US$ in Thousands) Total
TSMC TSMC North Americ Subsidiar Sale: $ 326,768,46 64 |Net 30 days after invoice di - - $ 40,748,90 72
GUC Investee accounted for usi Sale! 4,370,61 1 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - 238,38 -
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for usi Sale: 177,33: - |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - - -
equity method
TSMC Ching Subsidiar Purchase 15,708,44 26 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - (1,616,34) 1C
WaferTecl Indirect subsidiar Purchase 8,026,11. 14 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - (580,06 3
VIS Investee accounted for usi Purchase 4,475,67. 8 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - (364,790 2
equity method
SSMC Investee accounted for usi Purchase 3,638,63. 6 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - (351,389 2
equity method
TSMC North Americ.  |GUC Investee accounted for usi Sale! 509,89 - |Net 30 days after invoice di - - 35,03: -
equity method by TSMC (US$ 17,238) (US$ 1,206)
Mcube Inc Investee accounted for usi Sale: 249,37! - |Net 60 day after invoice dal - - 80,21: -
equity method by TSMC (US$  8,431) (US$ 2,762)
Xintec OmniVisior Parent company of direct Sale: 1,261,16: 40 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - 215,40: 5C
(represented for Xintec)
Note: The sales prices and payment terms to related parties wengnifatesitly different from those of sales to third parties. For aiflated party transactions, prices and terms were determined idawoemwith mutual agreements.
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TABLE 6

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 M ILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

Overdue Amounts Receivec

, . Ending Balance Turnover Days : Allowance for
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships (US$ in Thousands (Note 1) Amount Action Taken in S;té:rsigguent Bad Debts
TSMC TSMC North Americ Subsidiar $ 40,837,73 37 $ 15,905,71 - $ 17,191,89 $ -
GUC Investee accounted for usi 238,38( 15 - - - -
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for usi 122,89: (Note 2 - - - -
equity method
TSMC Partnel TSMC Chin The same parent compk 3,793,42: (Note 2 - - - -
(US$ 130,636)
TSMC Developmet |TSMC Sola The same parent comp: 1,496,19 (Note 2 - - - -
(US$ 51,525)
TSMC SSi The same parent comps 203,27 (Note 2 - - - -
(UsS$  7,000)
Xintec OmniVisior Parent company of direct 215,40: 66 - - - -
(represented for Xintec)
TSMC Technolog |TSMC Parent compar 117,28: (Note 2 - - - -
(US$ 4,039
WaferTecl TSMC Parent compar 580,64 16 - - - -

(US$ 19,976)

Note 1: The calculation of turnover days excludes other receiviableselated parties.

Note 2: The ending balance is primarily consisted of other receivatitesh is not applicable for the calculation of turnover days.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVEST EES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT IN FLUENCE

DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 7

Original Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 20 Equity in the
Net Income Eamings
December 31, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the
. o 2012 2011 Value Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (In | Percentage of (Foreign (Foreign (Note 1) Note
C 9N 9N Thousands) Ownership gn - 9N (Foreign
urrencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in 2
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
TSMC TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgin Island Investment activitie $42,327,24 | $42,327,24 1 10C $49,954,38 | $ 469,937 | $ 469,93 |Subsidiar
TSMC Partnet Tortola, British Virgin Island Investing in companies involved in the desi¢ 31,456,13 31,456,13 988,26¢ 10C 38,635,12 5,088,93 5,088,45 |Subsidiar
manufacture, and other related business in the
semiconductor industry
TSMC Chin: Shanghai, Chir Manufacturing and sellir of integrated circuits & 18,939,66 18,939,66 - 10C 17,828,68 4,757,12. 4,740,52. |Subsidiar
the order of and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by customers
VIS Hsin-Chu, Taiwal Research, design, development, macture, 13,232,28 13,232,28 628,22: 4C 9,462,03: 2,329,80: 770,37¢ |Investee accounted f
packaging, testing and sale of memory using equity methg
integrated circuits, LSI, VLSI and related parts
SSMC Singapor Fabrication and suppof integrated circui 5,120,02 5,120,02 314 39 6,710,95! 4,721,90: 1,831,63: |Investee accounted f
using equity methag
TSMC Sola Tai-Chung, Taiwa Engaged in researching, developing, desigr 11,180,00 11,180,00 1,118,00! 9¢ 6,031,36! (4,037,82) (4,044,94) |Subsidiar
manufacturing and selling renewable energy
and saving related technologies and products
TSMC North Americ. San Jose, California, U.S Selling and marketing of integrated circuits « 333,71¢ 333,71¢ 11,00( 10C 3,209,28: 312,23: 312,23. |Subsidiar
semiconductor devices
TSMC SSI Hsin-Chu, Taiwal Engaged in researching, developing, desigr 4,304,001 2,270,001 430,40( 95 2,411,21; (1,466,73) (1,397,58) |Subsidiar
manufacturing and selling solid state lighting
devices and related applications products and
systems
Xintec Taoyuan, Taiwa Wafer level chip size packaging sen 1,357,89i 1,357,89i 94,95( 4C 1,550,31: (91,17 (49,604 |Investee with :
controlling financia
interest
GUC Hsin-Chu, Taiwal Researching, developing, manufacturing, tes 386,561 386,56t 46,68¢ 35 1,222,97. 612,36¢ 209,31: |Investee accounted f
and marketing of integrated circuits using equity methg
VTAF llI Cayman Islanc Investing in new sta-up technology compani 1,896,91. 2,074,15! - 5C 1,047,28! (177,15)) 122,85 |Subsidiar
VTAF Il Cayman Islanc Investing in new ste-up technology compani 704,44 949,26 - 98 563,05¢ 62,34¢ 61,10: |Subsidiary
TSMC Europ Amsterdam, the Netherlar Marketing and engineering supporting activi 15,74¢ 15,74¢ - 10C 235,76: 34,93: 34,93: |Subsidiary
Emerging Allianc Cayman Islanc Investing in new ste-up technology compani 852,25¢ 892,85! - 9¢ 167,35¢ (2,940 (2,925 |Subsidiary
TSMC Japa Yokohama, Jap: Marketing activitie 83,76( 83,76( 6 10C 142,41: 3,78¢ 3,78¢ |Subsidiary
TSMC GN Taipei, Taiwal Investment activitie 100,00( - - 10C 65,001 (24,92 (24,92%) |Subsidiary
TSMC Kore: Seoul, Kore Customer service and technical suppor 13,65¢ 13,65¢ 8C 10C 26,93t 2,60z 2,60z [Subsidiay
activities
TSMC Sola Motect Taipei, Taiwal Manufacturing and sales of solar cells, crystal 6,228,66. 6,228,66. 87,48( 2C 2,998,41 (5,037,20) Note 2z |Investee accounted f
silicon solar cell, and test and measurement using equity methag
instruments and design and construction of
solar power systems
VTAF llI Cayman Islanc Investing in new sta-up technology compani 1,801,91 1,795,13. - 49 1,322,02. (177,15)) Note - |Investee accounted f
usingequity metho
TSMC Solar Eurog Amsterdam, the Netherlar Investing in solar related busin 504,10° 411,03: - 10C 175,01¢ (119,66%) Note Z |Subsidiary
TSMC Solar N/ Delaware, U.S./ Selling and marketing of solar related prod 205,77. 147,68t 1 10C 44,03" (65,26%) Note Z |Subsidiary
(Continued
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 20 Equity in the
Net Income Earninas
December 31, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the (Lossgs)
. . . 2012 2011 Value Investee
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (In | Percentage of (Foreign (Foreign (Note 1) Note
9n 9N Thousands) Ownership gn - 9n (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands)
TSMC SSI TSMC Lighting NA Delaware, U.S./ Selling and marketing of solid state lighti $ 3,13 | $ 3,13¢ 1 10C $ 2,86¢ | $ 7 Note Z |Subsidiar
related products
TSMC Partnel TSMC Developmer Delaware, U.S./ Investment activitie US$ 0.001 | US$ 0.001 - 10C US$ 604,36" | USY 144,33 Note z |Subsidiar
VisEra Holding Compar Cayman Islanc Investing in companies involvein the design US$ 43,00( | US$ 43,00( 43,00( 49 US$ 104,54( | US$ 30,09: Note - |Investee accounted f
manufacturing, and other related businesses in using equity methg
the semiconductor industry
TSMC Technolog Delaware, U.S./ Engineering upport activitie US$ 0.001 | US§ 0.001 - 10C US$ 11,72: | USY 1,10¢ Note Z |Subsidiary
ISDF 1l Cayman Islanc Investing in new ste-up technology compani US$ 14,15: | USY 14,15: 14,15: 97 US$ 10,47¢ | USY (12)) Note Z |Subsidiary
ISDF Cayman Islanc Investing in new ste-up technology compani usd 787 | US$ 787 781 97 Us$§ 7,80t | US§ 2,49: Note Z |Subsidiar
TSMC Canad Ontario, Canac Engineering support activiti Us$ 2,30C | USY 2,30C 2,30 10C US$ 4,58¢ | USY 422 Note z |Subsidiary
Mcube Inc. Delaware, U.S./£ Research, development, and sal Us$ 1,80C | USY 1,80c 6,33: 25 - | USY$ (12,599 Note 2z |Investee accounted f
micro-semiconductor device using equity methag
TSMC Developmen WaferTecl Washington, U.S./ Manufacturing, selling, testing ai US$ 280,00( | US$ 280,00( 293,63 10C US$ 262,05: | US$ 142,55: Note Z |Subsidiar
computer-aided designing of integrated circuits
and other semiconductor devices
VTAF Il Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Lt Taipei, Taiwal Manufacturing and selling of electronic parts i| US$ 5,21z | US$ 3,93 15,64: 58 Us$ 2,12 | USY (1,42 Note Zz |Subsidiary
researching, developing, and testing of RFID
Growth Fun Cayman Islanc Investing in new ste-up technology compani Us§ 1,83( | US$ 1,83( - 10C usd 36¢ | US§ (14)) Note Z |Subsidiary
VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S./ Investing in new ste-up technology compani - - - 62 - - Note2 |Subsidiary
VTAF I VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S./ Investing in new sta-up technology compani - - - 31 - - Note Z |Subsidiary
Emerging Allianc VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S./ Investing in new sta-up techiology companie - - - 7 - - Note Z |Subsidiary
TSMC Solar Eurog TSMC Solar Europe Gmkt Hamburg, Germar Selling of solar related products and provid EUR 12,40 | EUR 9,90( - 10C EUR 4,46¢ | EUR (3,139 Note Zz |Subsidiary
customer service
TSMC GN TSMC Sola Tai-Chung, Taiwa Engaged in researching, developing, desigr $ 42,94f | $ - 4,29¢ - $ 23,07¢ | $ (4,037,82) Note 2 |Investee accounted f
manufacturing and selling renewable energy using equity methg
and saving related technologies and products
TSMC SSI Hsin-Chu, Taiwal Engaged in researching, developing, desigr 34,26¢ - 3,42( 1 19,157 (1,466,73) Note 2 |Investee accounted f
manufacturing and selling solid state lighting using equity methag
devices and related applications products and
systems
Note 1: Equity in earnings/losses of investeealies the effect of unrealized gross profit froniliates.

Note 2:
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The equity in the earnings/losses of threstee company is not reflected herein as such min®already included in the equity in the earsit@sses of the investor company.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

TABLE 8

Accumulated Accumulated .
Investment Flows
Total Amount of Outflow of Outflow of Carrying Value | Accumulated
Paid-in Capital Investment from Investment from Equity in the as of In_vv ard
. . . Method of . . Percentage of . December 31, | Remittance of
Investee Company| Main Businesses and Products (Foreign Taiwan as of Taiwan as of . Earnings .
2 Investment Outfl Infl Ownership 2012 Earnings as of
Currencies in January 1, 2012 utriow nriow December 31, (Losses) :
. . (US$ in December 31,
Thousands) (USS$in 2012 (USS$in Thousands) 2012
Thousands) Thousands)
TSMC China Manufacturing and selling of $ 18,939,667| (Note 1) $ 18,939,66] -1 $ $ 18,939,667 100% $ 4,740,524 $ 17,828,683 $ -
integrated circuits at the ondef| (RMB 4,502,080 (US$ 596,000 (US$ 596,000 (Note 3)
and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by
customers
Shanghai Walden |Investing in new start-up 2,324,062| (Note 2) 147,485 - 147,485 6% (Note 4 145,190 -
Venture Capital technology companies (Uss 78,791 (US$ 5,000 (USs$ 5,000 (USs$ 5,000
Enterprise

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China
as of December 31, 2012
(US$ in Thousands)

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA

(US$ in Thousands)

Upper Limit on Investment
(US$ in Thousands)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

TSMC directly invested US$596,000 thousand in TSMC China.
TSMC indirectly invested in China company through third region, TSaMtDéd?s.

Amount was recognized based on the audited financial statements.

TSMC Partners invested in financial assets carriedtaecpsty in the earnings from which was not recognized.
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